PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Date: Tuesday 23 January 2018
Time: 7.00 pm
Venue:

Committee Room B6, Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton Hill SW2 1RW

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov
Members of the Committee
Councillor Malcolm Clark, Councillor Nigel Haselden, Councillor Diana Morris, Councillor Mohammed
Seedat, Councillor Joanne Simpson (Vice-Chair) and Councillor Clair Wilcox (Chair)
Substitute Members
Councillor Liz Atkins, Councillor Anna Birley, Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite, Councillor Tim Briggs, Mayor
Marcia Cameron, Councillor Jane Edbrooke, Councillor Robert Hill, Councillor Ben Kind, Councillor Luke
Murphy, Councillor Louise Nathanson, Councillor Jane Pickard and Councillor Sonia Winifred
Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Maria Burton, Telephone: 020 7926 8703; Email: MBurton2@lambeth.gov.uk
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. If you have any specific needs please contact
Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.
Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.
Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors (details via the website www.lambeth.gov.uk or phone 020 7926 2131) may be
contacted at their surgeries or through Party Group offices to represent your views to the Council:
(Conservatives 020 7926 2213) (Labour 020 7926 1166).
Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, you should aim to arrive at
least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 – or the number on the front
page.

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING
Page
Nos.

1.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para. 4))
in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a committee,
sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from the meeting
room during the whole of the consideration of that matter and must not
participate in any vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been
obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

2.

Minutes

1 - 20

To agree minutes of the meeting held on 12 December and 19 December
2017.

Town & Country Planning Act (1990), The Planning & Compensations Act
(1991), The Town & Country Planning (Control of Advertisement)
Regulations (1992), The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act (1990), The Town & Country Planning General Regulations
(1990), The Rush Common Act 1806 and related legislation: Applications
For information on documents used in the preparation of the reports
contact the Planning Advice Desk, Tel: 020 7926 1180.

3.

3, 5, 7, 9, 10 and 11 Coburg Crescent (Streatham Hill) 17/03981/RG3
Officer’s recommendations:
1.

Resolve to grant planning permission subject to conditions and subject
to the provision of a unilateral undertaking under Section 106 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure the planning
obligations listed in this report.

2.

Agree to delegate authority to the Director of Planning, Transport and
Development to:
a. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report
b. Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out in
this report pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act.

3.

In the event that the committee resolves to refuse planning permission
and there is a subsequent appeal, delegated authority is given to
officers, having regard to the heads of terms set out in the report, to
negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations within the
unilateral undertaking in order to meet the requirements of the
Planning Inspector.

21 - 58

4.

Appeal and Enforcement Decisions October 2017
To note the Planning Appeal and Enforcement Decisions for October
2017.

59 - 68

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE (PAC) FAQs - YOUR QUESTIONS ANSWERED
1

Who sits on the PAC?
The Council has established a PAC, which consists of seven Councillors (elected members).

2

Where and when do PAC meetings take place?
Meetings are usually held at the Karibu Education Centre, 7 Gresham Rd, London SW9 7PH.
However, the Town Hall is closed, PAC will be held in a number of different venues across the
borough. Please therefore ensure that you check the front page of the agenda pack before every
meeting.
The meetings are normally held on a Tuesday evening at 7pm, one or two times a month and are
listed on the Council’s calendar of meetings at:
http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov/mgCalendarMonthView.asp?GL=1&bcr=1

3

Can I attend PAC meetings?
Yes. All PAC meetings are open to the press and public although on rare occasions the Committee
may discuss a matter in private.

4

How can I get a copy of any reports to be considered by PAC?
The officer reports on applications to be considered are circulated to PAC Members and published
on the Council’s website a week before the meeting. Papers for meetings can be viewed at:
http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=600
A limited number of hard copies are also available from Democratic Services at the meeting.

5

Can I make written representations to the PAC meeting?
Yes. Written representations, including any letters, petitions or photos should be:

Sent to the relevant case officer listed on the front page of the officer report preferably by
email.

Sent by 12 noon two clear working days before the meeting. Meetings are normally on a
Tuesday, so the deadline would be 12 noon by the Thursday before the meeting.

6

Can I speak at PAC meetings?
Yes. Up to three supporters (including applicants), three objectors and the Ward Members can
address the meeting at the Committee’s discretion for a maximum of two minutes each.
You must register your wish to speak on any application by telephoning Democratic Services on 020
7926 8703 or emailing democracy@lambeth.gov.uk by 12 noon on the last working day before
the meeting. You will be required to supply in writing an outline of the points you wish to
raise at the meeting. If you telephone, Democratic Services will record these points.
Where the number of requests to speak exceeds three, and/or it is clear the speakers wish to make
similar points, like-minded speakers will be asked to liaise with each other so that all the points can
be raised succinctly.

7

Does the PAC consider applications in the order listed on the agenda?
Not necessarily. The order of business is determined at the meeting taking into consideration:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Applications which are withdrawn or which officers recommend should be deferred.
Applications where there are no notified speakers present wishing to address the committee
and members have no questions to ask the applicant or officers.
Applications which have been deferred from a previous meeting or have been the subject of a
site visit.
Applications for developments which would be in receipt of public funding and which are
subject to deadlines affecting delivery and other applications subject to specific deadlines.
Applications regarded as a priority due to the large number of people present, or where
applicants, objectors or other members of the public have special requirements.

8

What is the process for considering an application at the meeting?
Officers will introduce each application with a brief presentation which will usually include drawings
and photographs of the application site. The Committee will then hear from and question all
interested parties. Any registered objectors will speak first with applicants having the right of reply.
The merits of the application are considered taking into account the views of the interested parties
and planning officers before the committee reaches a decision.

9

What time does the meeting come to an end?
The meeting will be conducted in a business-like fashion and the Committee will endeavour to deal
with reports as quickly as possible.
However if there is a lot of outstanding business at 9.00pm the Chair will advise the meeting if and
how the timetable for the meeting has to be revised, in order to deal with remaining business and
finish the meeting at 10.00pm. At 10.00pm, if the meeting has not ended, the meeting will decide
which business can be completed by 10.45pm and any business not reached by that time will be
deferred to the next meeting.

10

What are site visits?
Site visits are arranged by Planning Officers to allow members of the PAC to observe the site and
gain a better understanding of the impact of the proposal. The decision of whether to have a site
visit is made by the Chair of the committee in consultation with the Director of Planning and
Development.

11

When do site visits take place and can I attend?
Site visits will normally take place on the Saturday morning immediately prior to the committee which
will consider the application. An alternative date can be arranged with the agreement of the Chair.
Other than for reasons of access, the arrangements for site visits will not normally be publicised or
made known to applicants, agents or third parties except in exceptional circumstances. Objectors
are not invited to site visits except in exceptional circumstances.
For more information please see the ‘Protocol for Members of the Planning Applications Committee’
in the Council Constitution.

12

If I am unable to attend the PAC meeting, how can I find out the decision?
Decisions will be posted on Twitter from @lbldemocracy immediately as the decision is taken. You
can also contact Democratic Services by telephone or email. The minutes from the meeting will also
be available on the Council’s website approximately five clear working days after the meeting.
Planning officers will send the applicant and any interested parties who have made written
representations formal notification of the Committee decision.

13

Can I listen to PAC online?
Yes! You can now listen to the any meeting of the PAC live via the council’s website. Simply go to
the specific meeting webpage (via the main PAC webpage) and tune in from the start of the
meeting. You can also listen back to previous meetings via the same method.

14

What is the addendum?
Sometimes planning officers are required to make amendments or add further information to
planning reports after the main agenda pack has been published. These changes will be
documented in an addendum (published the Friday before the meeting), and if necessary a second
addendum (published the day of the meeting). All addenda can be reviewed online as soon as it is
published and hard copies are made available for members of the public at the meeting.

15

Where can I get further information or advice?
If you would like further information or advice, please contact:
(a) Town Planning Advice Desk: Tel: 020 7926 1180, Email: planning@lambeth.gov.uk
(b) Town Planning Webpage: http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/Services/HousingPlanning/Planning/
(c) Democratic Services: Tel: 020 7926 8703, Email: democracy@lambeth.gov.uk

Guide to Use Classes Order in England (May 2013)
The table below is intended as a general guide. Reference needs to be made to the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes)
Classes

Use/Description

A1
Shops

Shops, retail warehouses, hairdressers, undertakers,
travel and ticket agencies, post offices, pet shops,
sandwich bars, showrooms, domestic hire shops, dry
cleaners, funeral directors and internet cafes.

A2
Financial &
professional
services

Financial services such as banks and building societies,
professional services (other than health and medical
services) including estate and employment agencies and
betting offices.

A3
Restaurants &
cafés

For the sale of food and drink for consumption on the
premises - restaurants, snack bars and cafes.

A4
Drinking
establishments

Public houses, wine bars or other drinking
establishments (not night clubs).

A5
Hot food
takeaways

For the sale of hot food for consumption off the premises.

B1
Business

a) Office other than a use within Class A2.
b) Research and development of products or processes.
c) Light industry appropriate in a residential area.

B2
General industrial

Use for industrial process other than one falling within
class B1 (excluding incineration purposes, chemical
treatment or landfill or hazardous waste).

B8
Storage or

This class includes open air storage.

Permitted change
Mixed use as A1 and up
to 2 flats above.
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A2, A3, B1.
To A1 where there is a
display window at ground
floor level and to mixeduse as A2 and up to 2
flats above.
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A3, B1.
To A1 where there is a
display window at ground
floor level, and A2.
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A2, B1.
To A1, A2 or A3.
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A2, A3,
B1.
To A1, A2 or A3.
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A2, A3,
B1.
To B8 subject to total
floorspace being no
greater than 500sqm.
B1(a) permitted change
to C3 subject to: prior
approval process;
previous use timings;
limitations and exempt
areas (until 30.05.16).
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A2, A3.
To state-funded school,
subject to prior approval.
To B1 and B8. Permitted
change to B8 is subject
to total floorspace being
no greater than 500sqm.
To B1 subject to total
floorspace being no

distribution
C1
Hotels
C2
Residential
institutions
C2A
Secure residential
institutions

C3
Dwellinghouses

C4
Houses in
multiple
occupation
D1
Non-residential
institutions

Hotels, boarding and guest houses where no significant
element of care is provided (excludes hostels).
Residential care homes, hospitals, nursing homes,
boarding schools, residential colleges and training
centres.
Prisons, young offenders’ institutions, detention centres,
secure training centres, custody centres, short term
holding centres, secure hospitals, secure local authority
accommodation or use as a military barracks.
Use as a dwellinghouse: a) A single person or by people
to be regarded as forming a single household; b) Not
more than six residents living together as a single
household where care is provided for residents; c) Not
more than six residents living together as a single
household where no care is provided to residents (other
than use within Class C4).
Small shared houses occupied by 3-6 unrelated
individuals, as their only or main residence, who share
basic amenities such as a kitchen or bathroom. NB Large
HMOs (more than 6 people) are unclassified and
therefore sui generis.
Clinics, health centres, crèches, day nurseries, day
centres, schools, art galleries (other than for sale or hire),
museums, libraries, halls, places of worship, church
halls, law court. Non residential education and training
centres.

greater than 500sqm.
To state-funded school,
subject to prior approval.
To state-funded school,
subject to prior approval.
To state-funded school,
subject to prior approval.

To C4.

To C3.

Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A2, A3,
B1.

D2
Assembly and
leisure

Cinemas, music and concert halls, bingo and dance halls
(but not night clubs), swimming baths, skating rinks,
gymnasiums or area for indoor or outdoor sports and
recreations (except for motor sports, or where firearms
are used).

To state-funded school,
subject to prior approval.
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A2, A3,
B1.

Sui Generis
Uses that do not
fall
within a specified
class

Includes theatres, large houses in multiple occupation,
hostels providing no significant element of care, scrap
yards, petrol filling stations and shops selling and/or
displaying motor vehicles, retail warehouse clubs,
nightclubs, launderettes, taxi businesses, amusement
centres and casinos.

No permitted change
except casino to D2.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

PAC
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Tuesday 12 December 2017 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
PRESENT:

Councillor Malcolm Clark, Councillor Nigel Haselden, Councillor
Diana Morris, Councillor Mohammed Seedat, Councillor Joanne
Simpson (Vice-Chair) and Councillor Clair Wilcox (Chair)

APOLOGIES:
ALSO PRESENT:

1.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS
Regarding application 17/04483/RG3 (114-118 Lower Marsh), Councillor
Haselden stated that he had been on the selection committee, but that he
was satisfied that he was able to make an objective decision.
With regard to application 17/04184/REM (Woodmansterne Primary
School), Councillor Wilcox stated that she would stand down from the
Committee for the duration of the item as she was the Ward Councillor and
had spoken in favour of the application at previous meetings and had a
pre-determined view.

2.

159 ACRE LANE (BRIXTON HILL) 17/01696/FUL
Case No. 17/01696/FUL (agenda item two, page one of the agenda pack
and page one of the addendum).
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary of the
report and subsequent addendum that had been published on Friday 8
December. Members were advised of the key material planning issues for
consideration which included the erection of a two storey building for a
builder’s merchants, the creation of up to 25 full-time equivalent jobs, the
proposed operating hours, the location of the site within the Key Industrial
Business Area (KIBA) and adjacent to a conservation area, the provision of
cycle parking, the proposed materials, the proposed arrangements for
vehicle access and deliveries, the lack of impact on daylight for residential
neighbours, the mitigations against noise and disturbance and the planning
obligations associated with the application. Members were shown images
of the site, the frontage of the previous building, and proposed frontage,
elevations and floorplans.
Following the officer’s presentation, the objector raised the following
concerns:
 The introduction of a traffic island on Acre Lane to prevent traffic
turning right out of the site was unnecessary. Preventing vehicles

Page 2




from turning right would lead to other roads being used as rat runs.
The design constituted a form of branding and would breach
policies Q2 and Q6. Heritage assets would be harmed as a result
of the application.
The application would create a darkened alley in the southwest of
the site.

The applicant and agents then provided the following information in
support of the application:
 The application would be purpose-built and the design had been
considered. The colour of materials would not be out of keeping
with the area.
 The darkened area raised by the objector was a fire escape for a
neighbouring development. The area would be illuminated.
 The traffic island on Acre Lane would be extended to prevent
vehicles turning right out of the site. This had been agreed
following concerns from Highways officers.
 Up to five vehicle movements per hour were expected as a result of
the application.
 The applicant was a family-owned business that employed over 400
staff. The business would be an asset to the local area with its
focus on employee training, profit sharing and support for charities.
Officers then provided the following information in response to questions
from Members:
 The cumulative trip generation in the area had not been considered.
 Enforcement had been taken against the unlawful use of the site as
a car showroom, but officers were unaware of the source of the
complaint.
 The current use had been described as ‘nil use’ as officers
considered it an abandonment due to the length of time the site had
been out of use. The proposed use was appropriate within the
KIBA and the previous use, a printworks, did not need to be
considered.
 There was no size limit for vehicles using the car parking on Acre
Lane and bays had been extended to accommodate larger, Transitstyle vans.
 Deliveries to building sites would be made by HGVs, but it was
likely that customers would use vans.
 The car park barrier would have a sensor and would be able to
detect cycles. There would be space in the car park for 10
standard bikes, and the possibility of providing more space to
accommodate cargo bikes could be explored.
 Electric lorries could be used to reduce noise.
 The timber inserts would give the appearance of a front door and
would soften the predominantly metal design.
 There would be two types of metal cladding on the front elevation,
and a canopy above the main entrance.
 The use of the site as a builders’ merchants meant that the majority
of customers would arrive by private vehicle, which had in turn
dictated the building design and car parking configuration.
 A landscaping plan would secured by condition. As much soft
landscaping as possible would be included and the boundary
treatment would be replaced.
 The operating hours would be from 06.00-19.00 Monday to Friday

Page 3





and 07.00-13.00 Saturday, with customer opening hours from 6.3017.00 Monday to Friday and 8.30-13.00 Saturday. The extended
hours would allow staff to arrive and for deliveries to be made.
A number of mitigation measures, such as the installation of
acoustically sealed roller blinds, quieter lorries and loading morning
deliveries the previous day, would be required. A full noise
assessment had been undertaken from the nearest residential
receptors, and noise levels would be within guidelines.
Environmental Health officers were satisfied with the mitigations.
Condition 9 could be amended to restrict delivery and servicing until
07.00. However, early deliveries to building sites were necessary.

The Legal Officer provided the following advice to the Committee:
 It was not possible to impose a condition that could be amended at
a later date.
The committee considered points raised by speakers and information
provided by officers in conjunction with the report before making the
following observations:
 Some Members felt that an opening hour of 06.00, particularly
regarding HGV movements, was too early considering the proximity
of the site to residential properties.
 The cycle parking racks should be configured to accommodate
cargo bikes.
 Bringing an empty site back into use and providing jobs was
positive.
 The design of the application had been well-considered. It was
unfortunate that the corner site had not been made more
prominent, and landscaping should be used to create a clear
presence.
 A height restriction on customer car parking should be imposed to
prevent HGVs having to use residential roads after leaving the
premises.
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Haselden,
and
RESOLVED, by five votes to one
1. To APPROVE planning permission subject to a Section 106
Agreement and the conditions as outlined in the officer’s report and
published addenda and the following:
i.
Amendment to Condition 23 to impose a height restriction to
the customer car parking entrance on the grounds of
residential amenity;
ii.
An informative requesting that the customer cycle parking
be configured to accommodate cargo bikes;
iii.
An informative requesting that soft landscaping is
maximised, particularly at the boundary, to assist with
drainage, and that the trees planted are as mature as
possible.
2. Agree to delegate authority to the Director of Planning and
Development to:
a. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report
including such refinements, amendments, additions and/or

Page 4

b.

c.
3.

deletions as the Director of Planning and Development
considers reasonably necessary;
Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations pursuant to
section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
including refining, adding to, amending and/or deleting the
obligations detailed in the heads of terms as the Director of
Planning and Development considers reasonably necessary;
and
Complete the planning obligations referred to above.

114-118 LOWER MARSH (BISHOPS) 17/04483/RG3
Case No. 17/04483/RG3 (agenda item four, page 107 of the agenda pack,
page four of the addendum and page three of the second addendum).
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary of the
report and subsequent addenda that had been published on Friday 8
December and the day of the meeting. Members were advised of the key
material planning issues for consideration which included the demolition of
the existing single storey building, the erection of a 2/3/4/5 storey building
with mixed use and flexible community space, the public realm
improvements to Granby Place, the proposed design, the relationship with
existing buildings on Lower Marsh and the use of materials that were within
the character of Lower Marsh. Members were shown images of the
proposed streetscape, elevations, massing and public space
improvements. Samples of materials were shown to Members.
The applicant, agent and architect then provided the following information
in support of the application:
 The application would redevelop a council-owned site and would
contribute to objectives in the Borough Plan and the Council’s
strategic objectives.
 Office space would be provided, which was in high demand in the
Waterloo area, and would provide space for SMEs.
 The configuration proposed would provide the densest employment
use, allowing a greater contribution to the local economy.
 The site was an infill site, with excellent public transport
accessibility. It was located within the Waterloo Opportunity Area
and the Central Activities Zone and was an appropriate use.
 The proposal would contain office, retail and community use.
 A unilateral undertaking would ensure that if the D1 space was not
reprovided at Oasis Johanna Primary Academy or at another site
within 250 metres, it would be provided at the site.
 The design would sit within the context of Lower Marsh, while
having its own character. The active frontage would be restored.
 The choice of materials was a response to the traditional shop
fronts.
Officers then provided the following information in response to questions
from Members:
 The unilateral undertaking would require the applicant to provide D1
space on the site unless it could be demonstrated that a
replacement facility of the same quantity and quality had been
provided. The definition of ‘quality’ would be a judgement call by
officers, and quantity would be determined by the amount of
floorspace to be provided.

Page 5





















Policy S1 protected the use class, rather than the precise usage, so
it was not possible to ensure that library use would continue. The
Culture 2020 programme required a replacement library to be
provided at the Oasis Academy site for three years, and a
permanent site at Oasis Johanna was being proposed.
Limited weight could be given to the Culture 2020 programme, as it
could be easily removed. The unilateral undertaking mean that the
proposed D1 space could not be used by any other class until the
library’s location was decided.
No studies on the existing usage had been done, and were not
required by policy.
The structure of the unilateral undertaking would require the
replacement D1 use to be in close proximity to the site.
The worst case scenario for refuse and servicing had been
established and plans would be based on this scenario. Condition
9 d) would require occupiers to provide details of servicing.
The architect had been keen to reflect the industrial character of
Station Approach and Waterloo Station. The pigmented concrete
was a modern take on the render used along Lower Marsh.
Officers were of the opinion that the design and materials would not
detract from the conservation area. The roof would not be visible to
pedestrians on Lower Marsh and the building would not dominate.
The roof terraces on 112-113 Lower Marsh did not have planning
permission. If BRE guidance was applied strictly, the terraces
would not receive enough light for seven months of the year. Were
they lawful, officers would likely have advised that BRE guidance
was guidance, rather than a requirement, and was designed for a
suburban context. The site was in a dense, urban environment and
the impacts on the roof terraces would be acceptable.
While there were markings for play in Granby Place, there was no
formal use for play or sport at present. Granby Place would be
used as public realm, with not sport use.
The Construction and Management Plan (CMP) assumed that
construction would take place from Lower Marsh. The applicant
would discuss with Network Rail the possibility of using Station
Approach instead of Lower Marsh, and would need to provide
evidence of attempted negotiations before Lower Marsh could be
used. The applicant had contacted Network Rail regarding the use
of Station Approach, but no agreement had yet been reached.
There were no details yet of how residential amenity would be
preserved during construction, but efforts could include limiting
construction hours, limiting delivery times of materials or using
Granby Place to store materials.
As the Council owned the land and was the applicant, it was not
possible to enter into a s106 agreement. The unilateral undertaking
would be enforceable by law and if the land was sold, the
obligations would transfer to the new landowner.
The ground floor vents would service the basement and ground
floor, and the vents at the top floor would service all other floors.
The vents would not emit any smoke or smells onto the street.
The final selection of materials was a condition and would be done
by officers.

The Legal Officer provided the following advice to Members:
 Criteria to assess the quality of replacement D1 use could be
included in the unilateral undertaking.

Page 6




It was not possible to protect the existing library use, as any library
could convert to another D1 use without the need for planning
permission.
Requiring the replacement D1 use to be a library would be too
prescriptive and was not supported by planning policy.
The unilateral agreement could be drafted in consultation with the
Chair in terms of the definition of ‘quality’ of the D1 use.

The committee considered points raised by speakers and information
provided by officers in conjunction with the report before making the
following observations:
 Clear effort had been made to secure the future library use, but
there was still a considerable level of uncertainty. Criteria on the
quality of the replacement D1 use should be included in the
unilateral undertaking.
 Some Members found the design to be well thought through,
particularly given the infill nature of the site. Other Members felt
that the design was inelegant and did not find the materials to be
appropriate.
 The proposed use was welcome, particularly the provision of
flexible office space.
 Improving the public realm at Granby Place would be positive and
should result in increased usage.
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Simpson,
and
RESOLVED, by five votes to one
1. To APPROVE planning permission subject to a unilateral
undertaking under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 and the conditions as outlined in the officer’s report and
published addenda and the following:
i. The unilateral undertaking to be drafted in consultation with the
Chair in terms of the definition of ‘quality’ of the D1 use.
2. To delegate authority to the Director of Planning, Transport and
Development to:
a. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report.
b. Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out
in this report pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act.

4.

WOODMANSTERNE PRIMARY SCHOOL (STREATHAM SOUTH)
17/04184/REM
Case No. 17/04184/REM (agenda item three, page 71 of the agenda pack,
page three of the addendum and page one of the second addendum).
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary of the
report and subsequent addenda that had been published on Friday 8
December and the day of the meeting. Members were advised of the key
material planning issues for the reserved matters application regarding
appearance and landscaping to be approved. It included an overview of
the proposed materials of the building and elevation studies, an overview
of the proposed soft and hard landscaping that included details of the

Page 7
proposed planting and hard landscaping materials and the rationale for
their inclusion. Officers were satisfied that the design was suitable and
appropriate and would differentiate the building from the primary school
building. Images of the proposed views of the building and the site were
shown. Members were informed that outline consent for the development
had been granted in 2015 and that minor amendments had been approved
under delegated powers in September 2017. Proposed materials were
shown to Members.
[At 22:00 the Committee elected to proceed with the meeting for a further
45 minutes in order to conclude the remaining matters of business.]
The applicant and architect then provided the following information in
support of the application:
 The proposal was sympathetic to the primary school but would
differentiate between the two schools.
 Two drop-in sessions had been held and had been successful.
 Work on the primary school was now complete.
 The same landscaping would be used throughout the site.
 The proposals were compliant with the outline planning permission.
 Following consultations, the proposed materials had been changed
from metal cladding to brick.
 There would be minimal fenestration on the northern façade,
minimising any overlooking.
Councillor Clair Wilcox then spoke in support of the application as the
Ward Councillor for Streatham South, stating that:
 Streatham South Ward Councillors had championed the proposal
for a secondary school in the area.
 The small number of objections reflected the officers’ work and
communication with residents.
 The final materials should be of the highest quality and the areas
closest to residential neighbours should be given particular
consideration. Landscaping should be well-maintained.
 The slight underprovision of playspace was regrettable.
 Sports facilities should be opened up to the whole community.
Officers then provided the following information in response to questions
from Members:
 The dark grey colour of the bricks had been chosen to relate
positively to the primary school while differentiating between the
two schools. Darker bricks would be affected less by staining.
 The warmer tones, such as yellow details to the fenestration and
bronze fins on the sports hall would brighten the site and would
provide contrast.
 Asphalt was a flexible and easily maintained material and could be
painted to provide contrast with the building materials. The
approach to the main school entrance would be paved in granite,
while there would be areas with resin-bound gravel which would
offer space to socialise.
 The plant equipment on the roof would not be visible from most
views. Screening would be required and details be submitted as
part of the condition secured on the planning permission to ensure
that it would not be perceptible.
 Rooflights were not sought for the sports hall as installing rooflights
would make it more difficult to control light and heat. The applicant

Page 8












had provided tests on the amount of sunlight that the sports hall
would receive and had obtained guidance from Sport England.
An informative was included requesting that the applicant consider
reducing the height of the fence between the car park and sports
hall as part of the boundary treatment details to be submitted.
The car parking area would be relatively open, with planting to
separate it from the main play area. The boundary treatment would
be a 2.1 metre tall fence, and while planting could be added to the
fence, the viability of any planting would have to be considered.
The coloured glazing suggested through an informative on the
outline permission had been in relation to the primary school, and it
had been advised that the coloured glazing was not incorporated.
The applicant advised officers that the bell tower clock from the
original primary school had been retained and would be included
within the landscaped area. An informative referring to this has
been included.
The number of bins being provided was below Lambeth’s
standards. However, the school would not be at capacity until 2023
and the level of waste generated could be monitored as the school
grew. Providing more space for refuse would reduce the space
available for landscaping and play spaces. Underground waste
storage had not been considered due to the cost. Additional waste
collections could be organised if the refuse generated was higher
than anticipated.
The windows on the first floor would have the deepest recess.
There would be a substantial amount of reveal on all windows.
No areas had been identified as food growing space, but could be
easily accommodated.
Condition 5 related to colour palettes and lighter tones could be
requested through an informative.

The committee considered points raised by speakers and information
provided by officers in conjunction with the report before making the
following observations:
 An informative should be added to request that the soft landscaping
in the car park be made as attractive as possible.
 A request to provide food growing space should be included in an
informative.
 Some Members felt that the design was acceptable, while others
felt that the dark grey brick would appear oppressive, particularly on
cloudy days and in the winter. All Members appreciated the need
to differentiate between the primary and secondary schools.
 The proposed planting area could create a setting similar to
parkland.
It was MOVED by Councillor Simpson, SECONDED by Councillor Clark,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
To APPROVE the reserved matters subject to the conditions as outlined in
the officer’s report and published addenda and the following:
i. Informative 8 referring to hard and soft landscaping details to be
expanded to encourage the applicant to encourage food
growing within the site and for soft landscaping within the car
park to be as attractive as possible.

Page 9
ii. Informative 2 referring to details to be submitted as part of condition
5 to be amended to request that lighter tones of brickwork be
considered.

5.

APPEAL & ENFORCEMENT DECISIONS AUGUST 2017

Members thanked officers for their work in defending the Council’s
policies.
CLOSE OF MEETING
The meeting ended at 10.40 pm
CHAIR
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Tuesday 19 December 2017
Date of Despatch: Wednesday 20 December 2017
Contact for Enquiries: Maria Burton
Tel: 020 7926 8703
Fax: (020) 7926 2361
E-mail: MBurton2@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 11

PAC
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Tuesday 19 December 2017 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
PRESENT:

Councillor Malcolm Clark, Councillor Nigel Haselden, Councillor Ben
Kind (Substitute), Councillor Diana Morris and Councillor Clair Wilcox
(Chair)

APOLOGIES:

Councillor Mohammed Seedat and Councillor Joanne Simpson

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillor Jack Hopkins

1.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS
There were none.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 28
November 2017 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record
of the proceedings.
The Chair announced a provisional timetable for the meeting in
accordance with Standing Order 9.9.1.

3.

VAUXHALL BUS STATION, BONDWAY (OVAL) 17/04741/FUL
Case No. 17/04741/FUL (agenda item three, page seven of the agenda
pack, page one of the addendum and page one of the second addendum).
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary of the
report and subsequent addenda that had been published on Friday 15
December 2017 and the day of the meeting. Members were advised of the
key material planning issues for consideration which included the wider
regeneration to Vauxhall, the consultation process, the impact on heritage
assets and the conservation area, the impact on interchange and bus
journey times, the reconfiguration of bus stops on Bondway and
Wandsworth Road and the public benefits of the application. In addition,
the Officer explained that while the changes to the gyratory and the
creation of public space were not part of the application, for context
purposes the wider changes to the area were necessary to understand the
rationale for the application. Members were shown images of the
boundary of the planning application, views of the existing and proposed
site, the location of heritage assets, proposed elevation and CGI views and
proposed materials.

Page 12
Following the officer’s presentation, the objectors raised the following
concerns:
 Air pollution led to 320 deaths per year in Lambeth and Vauxhall
had particularly poor air quality. No consideration had been given
to the effect on air quality and no Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) had been conducted.
 An air quality monitoring station should be installed.
 The consultation was inadequate in its process and scope.
Objectors had offered to pay for posters and flyers but Transport for
London (TfL) had refused this. Objections had been raised at all
public meetings on the proposal.
 Freedom pass holders and commuters from out of London had not
been consulted.
 The application would result in longer crossing times for
pedestrians. Maintaining a unified bus station was important for
bus users, especially those with mobility issues.
 Introducing two-way traffic was unsuitable in an area with high air
pollution.
 The application would reduce the size of the bus station and would
penalise public transport users.
 The proposed changes to the gyratory did not necessitate the
removal of the existing bus station.
 The report contained an error as not all groups listed as consultees
had been consulted.
The applicant, agent and architect then provided the following information
in support of the application:
 The design would be of high quality and would be a significant
investment to the area. It would contribute to the development of
Vauxhall as a district centre.
 The new layout would be a safer, more pleasant experience for
pedestrians and cyclists. It would be the most accessible bus
station in London.
 The wider scheme had received a 60% positive response during
consultation carried out by TfL.
 The design was consistent and would be integrated with the
surroundings. The customer experience would be improved, with
integrated information for all transport modes.
 The proposed development was designed to be resilient to future
growth.
 The design was a modern response to the architecture and history
of Vauxhall.
 The clock tower would enhance the presence of the bus station and
would improve wayfinding.
Councillor Jack Hopkins then spoke as Ward Councillor for Oval, raising
the following points:
 The current road layout was unpleasant and dangerous and the
proposals would make Vauxhall safer.
 The applicant had responded well to concerns from residents,
councillors and businesses.
 Conditions should come back to the Committee for approval, rather
than being approved under delegated authority.
Officers then provided the following information in response to questions

Page 13
from Members:
 The proposed canopy area was shorter but wider than the existing
and all bus stops would be covered.
 The wider traffic impact was not a material planning consideration,
but would be considered separately under the gyratory proposals.
 A Construction Management Plan (CMP) was required and in it
construction vehicles would be required to use TfL roads where
possible. At the peak of activity, there would be a maximum of 22
HGV movements per day.
 The southern canopies had to be separated to allow maintenance
without needing to close bus stops.
 Informal usage of the public space had been considered, as well as
use of it as an interchange.
 The proposal would be designed subject to the latest bus station
guidance to ensure that it would be accessible.
 Air quality would depend more on the cleanliness of the bus fleet,
rather than the configuration of the bus station. While alternative
designs had been considered, the differences in air quality impact
between designs had not been assessed.
 All crossing would be signalised and would have dropped kerbs.
 The draft CMP had indicated a two-year construction period and
that interim bus stops could be placed on Bondway.
 One of the objectives of the application was to create public space
and a district centre, which the introduction of the clock tower would
help to achieve. There was a long history of transport interchanges
having clock towers.
 The lighting of the clock tower would aid wayfinding at night.
 The design of the pissoir was at an indicative stage, and it was
understood that the applicant was considering different approaches.
Condition 7 required details of the pissoir to be submitted, and
these could be amended to include details of the planters.
 The materials had been selected to meet the design life of the bus
station and final materials would be subject to condition. There
would be access to the roof for maintenance.
 Benches would be placed near bus stops to maximise accessibility.
The canopies would have lowered edges to provide additional
shelter against wind and rain.
 The proposal would offer more protection against wind and rain and
would be more attractive at night.
 A Waste Management Plan had been submitted and deemed
acceptable. There would be double the required waste capacity
and waste would be collected twice per week. The Waste
Management Plan was an approved document and could be
enforced if necessary.
 If the proposal was agreed, a stage 2 referral would then be made
to the Mayor of London. The PAC Chair could be consulted on any
changes requested from the Mayor of London by the Assistant
Director of Planning, Transport and Development and could refer
any deemed fundamental changes to the Committee for approval.
The Committee considered points raised by speakers and information
provided by officers in conjunction with the report before making the
following observations:
 It was unclear why the proposal had come to the Committee without
plans on the interim bus stop arrangements.

Page 14









It appeared that there would be an improvement to interchange
times for bus users.
Conditions 19 and 20 should return to Committee for approval. If
the Mayor made significant changes in a mayoral direction, these
should be considered by the Committee.
The change to the streetscape necessitated a new bus station.
Members expressed concerns regarding the design of the
application, the height of the clock tower and potential accessibility
issues.
An informative should be added to condition 10 to request that
wayfinding signage be provided.
The public realm improvements should make the interchange
easier to navigate, and would be able to accommodate increased
usage in the future.
Although TfL had its own skills programme, it should be
encouraged to engage with local sources of labour and
apprenticeships.
The design of the proposal would assist with placemaking and
would be vibrant and colourful.

It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Haselden,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To APPROVE the grant of planning permission subject to referring the
application to the Mayor of London and any subsequent direction by the
Mayor of London and the conditions as outlined in the officer’s report
and published addenda and the following:
i. Conditions 19 and 20 to come back to Committee where
recommended for approval.
ii. Condition 25 be amended to include detail on bins being returned to
the store outside of collection times, with exact wording to be
delegated to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport and
Development in consultation with the Chair.
iii. Condition 7 be amended to include ‘and does not contribute to
littering or anti-social behaviour (ASB)’.
iv. Condition 19 be amended to include reference to construction
vehicles using TfL roads.
v. An informative requesting that TfL engage with sources of local
labour and apprenticeships.
vi. Condition 10 be amended to include explicit reference to the
requirement for provision of effective wayfinding around the bus
station.
2. To delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport
and Development to:
a. Consider any direction from the Mayor of London and to make any
consequential or necessary changes to the recommended
conditions as set out in this report;
b. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report
including such refinements, amendments, additions and/or
deletions as the Assistant Director of Planning and Development
considers necessary; and
c. Issue the permission.

Page 15
4.

GARAGES AT WALCOT SQUARE (PRINCE'S) 17/01956/FUL &
17/01957/LB
Councillor Wilcox stood down as the Chair for the remainder of the meeting
due to illness. It was proposed by Councillor Wilcox, and agreed
unanimously, that Councillor Morris chair the remainder of the meeting.
Case No. 17/01956/FUL and 17/01957/LB (agenda item five, page 141 of
the agenda pack and page nine of the addendum).
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary of the
report and subsequent addenda that had been published on Friday 15
December 2017 and the day of the meeting. Members were advised of the
key material planning issues for consideration which included the erection
of five two-storey plus basement mews houses and a detached house, the
removal of the trellis from listed walls, the location of the site within the
Vauxhall Square conservation area, the site being bounded by private
residential gardens, the provision of three parking spaces, waste and cycle
storage, and the amenity impact. Members were shown images of the
existing site, access routes, proposed floorplans, elevations, materials and
views.
Following the officer’s presentation, the objectors raised the following
concerns:
 Policy Q14 stated that gardens were not appropriate development
sites, and part of the site was a garden. The proposed houses
were too tall and too close to neighbouring houses, and would not
be subordinate.
 The loss of openness and of landscaping would alter the character
of the conservation area.
 The report stated that the minimum distance from properties on
Walcot Square would be 18 metres, but on the ground floor the
minimum distance would be 13.7 metres.
 The full height windows and balconies on the first floor would
overlook living rooms and bedrooms.
 Access to the parking spaces would require complicated
manoeuvres. The London Plan encouraged car-free developments.
 There was nothing to prevent the homes from being used as
houses in multiple occupations (HMOs).
 The draft conservation statement stated that there were no
significant development opportunities within the conservation area.
 The proposal breached policies EN1 (c), Q5, Q10, Q14 (e), Q20
and Q22 (a) with regard to the bulk, the loss of local distinctiveness,
the harm to heritage assets and the harm to biodiversity.
 Historic England and the Georgian Group had objected to the
application.
 There were no public benefits to outweigh the harm to heritage
assets.
The applicant and supporter then provided the following information in
support of the application:
 The applicant was a charity that had operated since the 17th century
and only operated within Lambeth. It allocated £2 million in grants
each year and the development was crucial to the charity
continuing its work in the borough.
 The application would bring underused land into constructive use

Page 16







and would directly fund the Foundation’s work.
The application was the result of five years’ work, with extensive
advice being taken from officers.
The application would provide low density, low rise housing in an
increasingly high density area. The houses would be subordinate
to existing buildings.
The development would replace nondescript garages and would not
harm heritage assets.
The site was not backland so policy Q14 did not apply. Minor
departures from policy did not warrant refusal.
There were sufficient conditions to address any issues.

A resident then read a statement from Councillor David Amos, Ward
Councillor for Prince’s:
 Efforts to mediate between residents and the applicant had not
been successful.
 There had been 129 public objections, as well as an objection from
the Georgian Group.
 The application contravened the draft conservation area statement
and the Local Plan.
 Gardens were not potential development sites, and the proposed
houses were too bulky and tall. The application would result in the
loss of residential amenity and privacy.
Officers then provided the following information in response to questions
from Members:
 Party wall arrangements were not a material planning
consideration. In this case the applicant also owned the land that
would be subject to the party wall agreement.
 The site did not fit easily within the definition of backland or garden
sites and as such it had been considered against policies Q14 (a)
and Q14 (c).
 Gardens and allotments did not constitute brownfield land, so some
of the site was not classified as previously developed.
 As the majority of trees in the backland element of the site would be
maintained, the environmental value would be maintained.
 Three parking spaces, including one disabled parking space, would
be provide on-site. The on-street disabled parking space would be
moved as a result of the application and would be reprovided.
 The applicant had provided diagrams demonstrating how vehicles
would enter, access spaces and exit the site. A 7.5 tonne van
would be able to enter and exit the site in a forward gear.
 The existing character of the area was relatively dense, with most
houses having small gardens. At their closest, the proposed homes
would be 15.4 metres from the homes on Walcot Square and 26
metres from homes on Kennington Road. The proposal would sit
comfortably within this context.
 The applicant had provided sample materials, with the colours and
materials selected to complement existing buildings. The proposed
brick was a contemporary version of a London stock brick used
widely in the area. Cladding would contribute to screening along
Kennington Road and would give the houses a more lightweight
appearance.
 The applicant would be encouraged to view the proposed materials
on site to compare them with neighbouring buildings.

Page 17











The Section 106 agreement would secure the permit-free parking
element of the development.
There were 26 garages on the site. If all of the garages were used,
there would be sufficient capacity on local roads to accommodate
the displaced vehicles.
The existing London Plan allowed up to one parking space per
dwelling, but as the Census had shown that there were on average
0.5 cars per household in the area, providing three spaces was
deemed appropriate.
The garden house had been designed to fit within the garden
context while being subordinate to surrounding buildings. The
proposed materials responded to materials used elsewhere in the
conservation area.
Resident cycle parking would be within the boundary of the houses.
Visitor cycle parking would be provided on-site.
The London Plan stated that 90% of homes must be adaptable, and
10% must be accessible, for wheelchair users. However, these
policies could only be enforced for social or affordable housing
units, and the policy would normally only be applied to
developments proposing 10 or more units. The garden house could
be easily adapted for wheelchair users due to its large ground floor,
and as such a condition would not be necessary.
Permitted development (PD) rights could be removed if there was a
planning justification.
In this case, removing PD rights to
extensions could be justified due to the small plot sizes. However,
it would be harder to justify removing PD rights to change usage
from C3 (dwellinghouses) to C4 (homes of multiple occupancy), as
government guidance stated that this change was generally
acceptable and the size of the houses would naturally limit the
number of occupants.

The Committee considered points raised by speakers and information
provided by officers in conjunction with the report before making the
following observations:
 The intensification of use would have an impact on neighbouring
amenity. However, the proposal was modest and high quality.
 The proposal would not harm the heritage setting of the
conservation area.
 Some Members felt that the garden house breached policy Q14 (c)
ii as it had two storeys and was a garden development.
 Permitted development rights should be removed.
 It was difficult to use policy to require any fully accessible homes in
the development due to the small number of homes to be provided.
 The choice of the materials, and the introduction of green roofs,
was welcome. The final selection of bricks would be key to whether
the development would sit comfortably within the context.
[At 22:00 the Committee elected to proceed with the meeting for a further
45 minutes in order to conclude the remaining matters of business.]
17/01956/FUL:
It was MOVED by Councillor Morris, SECONDED by Councillor Kind, and
RESOLVED, by four votes to one
1. To APPROVE planning permission subject to a Section 106

Page 18
Agreement and the conditions as outlined in the officer’s report and
published addenda and the following:
i. A restriction to Permitted Development rights regarding extensions.
ii. An informative requesting that bricks and pointing match those of
the surrounding properties.
2. Agree to delegate authority of the Director of Planning and
Development to:
- Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report; and
- Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out in
this report pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
17/01957/LB:
It was MOVED by Councillor Morris, SECONDED by Councillor Wilcox,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
To APPROVE listed building consent.

5.

SLADE GARDENS, STOCKWELL PARK ROAD (VASSALL)
17/02279/FUL
Case No. 17/02279/FUL (agenda item four, page 83 of the agenda pack
and page seven of the addendum).
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary of the
report and subsequent addendum that had been published on Friday 15
December 2017. Members were advised of the key material planning
issues for consideration which included the demolition of the existing
community hub, the erection of a new community hub and two flats, and
the two additional conditions included in the addendum. Members were
advised of the site constraints and shown images of the existing site,
proposed site plans, floorplans and elevations.
Officers and the applicant then provided the following information in
response to questions from Members:
 The current community hub was primarily used by the adventure
playground and one o’clock club, although there were other uses
such as youth groups, business away days and a small number of
social events. The proposed conference centre would only be used
in the daytime.
 The site needed to be self-sufficient, and the application would
allow this.
 The vast majority of visitors to the community hub arrived by public
transport.
 An analysis of suitable routes for construction traffic had not yet
taken place. Officers and the applicant would seek to protect local
amenity where possible during construction.
 There would be safe access to the green roof for children to enjoy.
The application would provide a net increase of open space.
 A travel plan would be required through the s106 agreement, but
had not yet been completed. Although not included in the officer’s
report, the monitoring cost should be included alongside the travel
plan.

Page 19

It was MOVED by Councillor Morris, SECONDED by Councillor Wilcox,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To APPROVE the grant of planning permission subject to a Section
106 Agreement and the conditions as outlined in the officer’s report
and published addenda including the following:
i. The two additional conditions included in the addendum
regarding the living walls and the waste management strategy.
ii. The requirement for a travel plan and monitoring costs, and the
removal of right to parking permits for the residential dwelling in
the Section 106 agreement.
2. Agree to delegate authority of the Director of Planning and
Development to:
i. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report
and;
ii. Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out
in this report pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

6.

APPEAL AND ENFORCEMENT DECISIONS SEPTEMBER 2017
Members thanked officers for their work defending Council policies,
particularly Policy ED7 regarding the location of takeaways near schools.

CLOSE OF MEETING
The meeting ended at 10.20 pm
CHAIR
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Tuesday 23 January 2018
Date of Despatch: Thursday 04 January 2018
Contact for Enquiries: Maria Burton
Tel: 020 7926 8703
Fax: (020) 7926 2361
E-mail: MBurton2@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 21

Agenda Item 3

Page 22

ADDRESS:

3, 5, 7, 9, 10 And 11 Coburg Crescent London SW2 3HS

Application Number: 17/03981/RG3

Case Officer: Rositsa Malinova

Ward: Streatham Hill

Date Received: 14.08.2017

Proposal:
Erection of a ‘Resource Centre’ providing day centre services for adults with learning disabilities (Use
Class D1), long stay and short stay residential accommodation with care for adults (Use Class C2), a shop
(Use Class A1) and an ancillary ‘community space’ with café; together with the partial demolition of the
existing shop at 8 and 9 Coburg Crescent to allow the creation of a 1-bedroom flat associated with the
Resource Centre (Use Class C2), and associated landscaping and public realm improvements.
Drawing numbers:
85387-01-A-06-001P, rev 2; 85387-01-A-06-001, rev 2; 85387-01-A-06-002, rev 2; 85387-01-A-06-101,
rev 2; 85387-01-A-20-001, rev 2; 85387-01-A-20-002, rev 2; 85387-01-A-20-101P, rev 1; 85387-01-A-20102P, rev 2; 85387-01-A-20-103, rev 3; 85387-01-A-20-104, rev 3; 85387-01-A-20-105, rev 2; 85387-01A-20-201, rev 2; 85387-01-A-20-202, rev 2; 85387-01-A-20-301, rev 2; 85387-01-A-20-302, rev 2; 8538701-A-20-303, rev 2; 85387-01-A-49-901, rev 2; 85387-01-A-49-902, rev 2; 85387-01-A-49-903, rev 2;
85387-01-A-20-L09-101; 291-1-03; P2890.2.001; P2890.2.002 rev A; B7809-C.1.01; B7809-C.1.02;
B7809-C.1.03; B7809-C.1.05.
Documents:
Design and Access Statement, C.F.Moller, July 2017; Townscape Views, C.F.Moller, July 2017; Landscape
Proposal, Jamie Buchanan, July 2017; Planning Statement, DLBP, August 2017; Transport Statement,
Vectors, August 2017; Planning Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing Report, BLDA Consultancy, August
2017; Noise Impact Assessment, Hawkins environmental, July 2017; Statement of Public Consultation,
DLBP, August 2017; Civil Engineer’s Stage 3 Report, Price and Myers, August 2017; Arboricultural Impact
Assessment, agb environmental, June 2016; Energy and Sustainability Assessment, Desco and
Price&Myers, July 2017; Overheating analysis, Desco, June 2017; Coburg Crescent post-submission,
October 2017; Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, October 2017; Response letter (green roofs and
landscape), 1 November 2017; Response letter (flood risk), 1 November 2017; Comment Response,
November 2017.
RECOMMENDATION:
Resolve to grant planning permission subject to conditions and subject to the provision of a
unilateral undertaking under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure the
planning obligations listed in this report.
Agree to delegate authority to the Director of Planning, Transport and Development to:
a. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report
b. Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out in this report pursuant to
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act.
In the event that the committee resolves to refuse planning permission and there is a subsequent
appeal, delegated authority is given to officers, having regard to the heads of terms set out in the
report, to negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations within the unilateral undertaking in
order to meet the requirements of the Planning Inspector.

Applicant:
Major Capital Programme,
London Borough Of Lambeth

Agent:
Mr Armando Zappala
Dominic Lawson Bespoke Planning
1 Gracechurch Street
London

Page 23
SITE DESIGNATIONS
Relevant site designations:
Smoke Control Area
Streets Under Conversion Stress
Flood Risk Zone
Conservation Area

Smoke Control Area
Palace Road
Zone 1
N/A

LAND USE DETAILS
Site area

0.3370 Hectares (3370sqm)
Use Class

Existing

Class D1
Class A1

Proposed

Class D1
Class C2
Class A1

Use Description
Previously existing adult education centre
(demolished 2015)
Shop
Day centre service with ancillary
community space and cafe
Long and short term accommodation with
care for adults
Shop

Floorspace (Gross
External Area)
Approximately 1,166sqm
Approximately 101 sqm
1,656.8 sqm
1,450 sqm
92.3 sqm

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The application site is located on the corner of Palace Road and Coburg Crescent within the Palace Road
Housing Estate. It comprises 1,770sqm of vacant land (currently fenced off from public access), 845sqm of the
Palace Road Housing Estate’s communal amenity area (garden), and a shop (Use Class A1) located on the
ground floor of 8 and 9 Coburg Crescent.
The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a new three-storey building to be used as a
“Resource Centre” providing a day centre service for adults with learning disabilities (Use Class D1), long term
and short term residential accommodation with care for adults with disabilities (Use Class C2), and an ancillary
‘community space’ with café. The new building would also include a new shop (Use Class A1) facing onto Palace
Road, which would be operated independently from the Resource Centre.
The application also proposes to partially demolish and redevelop the existing shop located on the ground floor
of 8 and 9 Coburg Crescent and to change its use to provide accommodation for a key worker employed by the
Resource Centre (Use Class C2).
All of the proposed uses are acceptable for the site. The proposed Resource Centre would provide important
resources and services for residents of Lambeth’s with profound and learning disabilities. The proposed day
centre service component of the Resource Centre (Use Class D1) would be occupied by an existing day centre
facility currently located at 109 Lambeth Walk, which is no longer fit for purpose and needs replacing. The new
building would be of a better quality and designed specifically for the needs of the future users. The proposed
residential care accommodation component of the Resource Centre (Use Class C2) is also specifically designed
for the needs of future residents providing independent living spaces where possible, and on-site
accommodation for care staff.
The proposed Resource Centre would also include an ancillary community space with café. The community
space would be available for community hire in the evenings when not being used by the day centre service of
the Resource Centre. The café, although predominantly for staff and users of the Resource Centre would be
open to the general public, creating ‘a meeting point for all’.

Page 24
The proposed building design has been refined in consultation with the Council’s Urban Design team through a
pre-application process. The Council’s Urban Design team supports the proposed design, scale and massing,
and considers that the proposed building would result in an improvement to the visual amenity of the surrounding
area. The applicant has demonstrated that, subject to the payment of a Zero Carbon Offset Contribution, the
building would achieve sustainable requirements, including achieving a BREEAM rating of at least excellent.
Officers have been mindful of potential amenity impacts to surrounding residential properties. The proposed
development would result in some loss of daylight and sunlight to the properties north of the application site,
however all of these losses are within BRE guidelines and are therefore considered to be acceptable.
Furthermore the proposed building would be sufficiently setback so it would not result in any undue sense of
enclosure when viewed from the windows of adjoining residential properties, nor would it result in any oppressive
enclosure of the adjoining outdoor amenity spaces.
The proposal would result in the loss of open space, comprising 773.7sqm (or 3.13%) of the communal amenity
area within the Palace Road Housing Estate. Policy EN1 of the Lambeth Local Plan seeks to protect open
spaces and their functions and only allows the loss of such spaces if one of three tests is met. The test relevant
to this application is found at Policy EN1 (a) (ii), which states that the loss of open space would not be supported
unless significant regeneration and community benefits would be achieved and appropriate compensatory
provision for the loss of open space is made. It is officer opinion that the proposal would satisfy this test – the
proposal would deliver significant regeneration and community benefits, and the proposal would compensate
the loss of open space through landscaping improvements to the gardens within the application site and the
Palace Road Housing Estate. The proposal would therefore be compliant with Policy EN1.
The proposal would result in the loss of seven trees, which the Council’s biodiversity officer has advised are of
limited ecological interest. However, as recommended by the Council’s Tree Officer, the applicant proposes to
replace these trees with 28 new trees within the site and the surrounding Palace Road Housing Estate. This is
to protect and reinforce the green character of the area, and represents four new trees for each tree removed.
The majority of the Resource Centre’s transport requirements would be met by one of three mini buses. The
mini buses would transport service users to and from their homes, with dedicated parking for the buses provided
on-site. In addition, two disabled car parking bays are to be provided for use of staff and visitors. Despite the
mini buses and the on-site car parking bays, the Council’s Transport Officer has advised that the proposed
development is likely to generate an element of future kerb-side car parking across streets in the surrounding
area (mainly from visitors to the site), however the officer confirmed that there is adequate availability of parking
spaces in the area to accommodate this, therefore there is no transport objection to the proposal.
Officers consider that the proposal would be in compliance with the Development Plan for the Borough. There
are no material considerations of sufficient weight that the application should be refused. Officers are therefore
recommending approval of the scheme in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable
development conferred upon Local Planning Authorities by the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).
OFFICER’S REPORT
Reason for referral to PAC: (ii) The provision of a building or buildings where the floor space to be
created including changes of use, by the development is 1,000 square metres or more;

1

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

1.1

The Site

1.1.1

The application site is irregular in shape and located on the north east corner of Palace Road and
Coburg Crescent in the Palace Road Housing Estate. The site comprises the following:


1,770sqm of vacant land (currently fenced off);



845sqm of open space, currently part of the Palace Road Housing Estate’s communal amenity
area; and

Page 25


A 120sqm shop, which is located at the ground floor of 8-9 Coburg Crescent, and it is currently in
use. The existing shop is partly located below the dwellings at 10-11 Coburg Crescent. The existing
shop can be seen on Figure 1 and Figure 2 below.

Figure 1 – the site as currently existing, May 2017. (Source Google Maps)

1.1.2

The section of the site that is currently vacant and fenced off was previously used by an Adult Education
Centre housed in three “pavilion-like” buildings (demolished in 2015). These 1970s buildings were
unusual in shape and form. The buildings were made from brick at ground floor level and were tile clad
at upper and roof levels – as a result they read as plinths with slightly overhanging larger and unusually
shaped elements on top (shown on the image below).

Figure 2 – Previously existing buildings, demolished in 2015. (Source Google Maps)

1.2

The Surrounds

Page 26
1.2.1

The surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature. The area is green and leafy, with large
verges on either side of Palace Road and the Palace Nature Garden opposite. The large number of
trees and large areas of open space play a significant role in the character and makeup of the area.
The residential buildings that surround the site form flat roofed terraces with brick piers and painted
timber panels originating from the mid-20th century.

1.2.2

The site is not in a Conservation Area and does not contain any locally or statutory listed buildings.

1.2.3

The application site is located in Flood Zone 1 (low probability). This zone comprises land assessed as
having 1 in 1000 annual probability of fluvial or tidal flooding (<0.1%).

1.2.4

The application site falls within an area of moderate level of public transport accessibility level (PTAL
score of 3). Two bus stops are located on Roupelle Road (north of the South Circular Road),
approximately 300m walking distance from the site. Bus stops are also located on Hillside Road
(southeast of the site), approximately 500m walking distance from the site. Furthermore there are
approximately eight bus services per hour accessible from within 500m walking distance of the site. The
site is located approximately 1km walking distance from Tulse Hill Rail Station, and approximately 1km
from Streatham Hill Rail Station.

Figure 3 – Site context (Source Design and Access Statement).

2

PROPOSAL

2.1.1

The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a new three-storey building to be used
as a “Resource Centre” providing day centre service for adults with learning disabilities (Use Class D1),
residential accommodation with care for adults with disabilities (Use Class C2), and an ancillary
‘community space’ with café. Further details of the Resource Centre are provided below. The new
building would also include a new shop (Use Class A1) facing onto Palace Road, however the shop
would be an independent operation separate to the other uses in the Resource Centre building.

2.1.2

The application also proposes:

Page 27


The partial demolition and redevelopment of the existing shop located on the ground floor of 8 and
9 Coburg Crescent and the changing of its use to provide accommodation for a key worker
employed by the Resource Centre (Use Class C2);



Landscaping and public realm improvements, including enhanced planting on site, new public
benches/seating, the installation of wheelchair accessible crossings on Palace Road, enhanced
street and path lighting, enhances pavers / ground coverings, and the planting of new trees and
planting in the Palace Road Housing Estate and along Coburg Crescent and Palace Road;



The installation of a ‘drop off’ area for three minibuses, plus two disabled car parking spaces at the
entrance to the day centre service;



The provision of 6 short-term and 14 long-term cycle parking spaces;



The removal of 7 trees to be replaced by 28 new trees; and



The installation of a loading bay along Palace Road including the removal of 5 on-street car parking
spaces.

Figure 4 – Proposed Resource Centre building viewed from Palace Road

Figure 5 – Proposed Resource Centre building viewed from Coburg Crescent

2.1.3

The proposed “Resource Centre” would consist of the following three main components:

Page 28
1) Day centre services for adults with learning disabilities (Use Class D1). The day centre service
would consist of “day spaces” (rooms for group therapy and activities such as storytelling and music
sessions) and “therapy spaces” (rooms providing therapy for individuals that require more privacy or
specialist therapy) for adults with learning disabilities. The day centre service would also include a
garden, which would be an important feature providing a safe outdoor space for those using the day
centre service. The applicant has advised that people with a learning disability often feel uncomfortable
or excluded from public open spaces because they are not designed for their needs. The courtyard
would be an important resource adding to the quality of life of Lambeth’s residents.
2) Short term and long term residential accommodation with care for adults with disabilities (Use
Class C2) comprising: Short-term accommodation (4no rooms); Profound and Multiple Learning
Disabilities (PMLD) ﬂats (2no ﬂats); and Long-term accommodation ﬂats (6no ﬂats).
The short-term and the PMLD ﬂats would be located on the ﬁrst ﬂoor, sharing a communal area. The
two PMLD flats would each contain two bedrooms for service users and a further bedroom for a member
of staff, providing their own living rooms and kitchens. A further ﬁve bedrooms would be provided - four
for service users for short-term accommodation and one for a member of staff.
The long-term accommodation would be for users with more moderate needs, and are slightly more
independent. These ﬂats would be located on the second ﬂoor and would consist of six self-contained
ﬂats comprising 2 X 1-bedroom ﬂats, 3 x 2-bedroom ﬂats, and 1 x 3-bedroom ﬂat. These ﬂats would be
provided for service users with moderate disabilities who are able to live relatively independently.
3) A community space with café, which would be ancillary to the day centre service. The community
space would mostly be used as part of the day centre service, however it would be made available for
hire for community functions or by community groups when not required by the day centre service. The
proposed café would front Palace Road and it would be directly accessible from street level. It would be
open to the public and not just users or residents of the Resource Centre.

Figure 6 – Proposed layout and uses

3

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

3.1

85/02088/PLANAP - Withdrawn - Decision date: 01.11.1985
Works of alteration and improvement to the houses.

3.2

15/00866/G31 - No Further Action - Decision date: 16.04.2015

Page 29
Prior notification for demolition under Part 31, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order (1995) with regards to demolition of existing dilapidated Adult Education
Centre.

4

CONSULTATIONS

4.1

Pre-application consultation

4.1.1

The applicant undertook a pre-application consultation process including twelve consultation meetings
with the day service stakeholders, the Palace Road Residents Association, and the Lambeth learning
disabilities assembly.

4.1.2

The aims of the consultation process was to raise awareness of the proposed development and planning
application, and to understand (and respond to) the needs of the local community, end users of the
facility and the development team.

4.1.3

The proposed design of the development has been influenced by the community consultation. The
design responds to matters important to end users and residents this has included ensuring adequate
floor space is provided for the day centre service, providing a garden for day centre users, providing
covered drop-off areas, acknowledging the need to avoid having ‘sharp angled bits’, providing good
wheelchair access to the garden, providing easily understood signage and colour coded rooms, and
providing facilities so that future residents can be independent where possible.

4.2

Adjoining owners/occupiers

4.2.1

Public consultation was undertaken in accordance with statutory and council requirements. This
included letters to neighbours, site notices and a press advert.
Number of neighbours consulted:
Number of objections:
Number in support:
Number neither supporting nor objecting:

74
2
1
0

Comments are summarised in the table below:
Loss of a local shop
The proposal would result in the loss of a local
shop. This would have an impact on the day to day
retail needs of the local residents.
Transport and highways
There is already pressure on street parking, and
cars being parked on the non-yellow lines on
Palace Road Estate. There are also cars parked on
double lines in front of the driveway of the local
residents.

The application proposes to replace the
existing shop, and the development would not
result in the loss of a shop.

The applicant is proposing a car free
development (other than disabled parking).

The
proposed
development
does
not
accommodate any off-street parking, and this
would further exacerbate the already high parking
stress in the local area.

The Council’s Transport Officer has reviewed
the applicant’s transport and parking stress
documents and has advised the proposed
development would not result in unacceptable
on-street parking stress levels. This is further
discussed in section 6.16 of this report.

Where would the staff who attend the centre park?

The applicant does not propose on-site parking
for the staff.

Page 30
The members of staff would be encouraged to
use the proposed cycle parking or the
available public transport. A planning condition
is recommended requiring the submission and
approval of a travel plan statement to
encourage the use of more sustainable forms
of transport.
For those staff who do drive to the centre, as
discussed above, the Council’s Transport
Officer has reviewed the applicant’s transport
and parking stress documents and has
advised the proposed development would not
result in unacceptable parking stress levels.

The proposed two disabled parking spaces are not
sufficient.

Is the gate at the top of Palace Road going to be
open to allow easy access for people to park to
prevent people to cut from Coburg Cresent to get
easier access to Palace Road? This would create
unacceptable traffic on a quiet estate road.

The provision of two disabled parking spaces
is acceptable for the needs of the proposed
Resource Centre. The applicant proposes
three minibuses to escort the service users to
and from home, which would significantly
reduce parking demand on the site. This is
further discussed in sections 6.14 – 6.16 of this
report.

The gate to Palace Road is outside the
boundary of the application site and it is not
subject to this application.

Sustainability

Heating
The "Energy and Sustainability Assessment"
(dated July 2017) states in Section 4.1 (Potential
District Heating Network Connection) that "As
show on London Heat Map interactive website,
there is currently no existing nor a potential future
district heating network expansion route near the
site".
It should be noted that there are district heating
systems on the adjoining Palace Road Housing
Estate, including in Ducavel House (within
approximately 20 metres of the proposed
development).

Rainwater drainage

The Council’s Sustainability Consultant
investigated whether there are existing
decentralized heating, cooling or power
networks in the vicinity of the site. The Council’s
Sustainability Consultant advised that there are
no current decentralized networks in the vicinity
of the site.
However, it is noted that the proposed
development would make provisions to connect
to potential future planned energy networks,
which is to be secured by Condition 16.
The applicant advised that there is a communal
boiler system which serves the residential
blocks in the Palace Road Housing Estate,
however the proposed development cannot be
connected to this system because the
communal boiler system is unusually designed
and sized to provide heat only for the building it
is connected to.
The applicant provided detailed drawings
showing external drainage features, which have
been reviewed by the Council’s Urban Design
Officers. They have advised that the provided
details are acceptable from a design
perspective and that the inclusion of water
goods into the elements of the façade detail
look positive and well integrated into the design.

Page 31
It is unclear from the planning application how
rainwater will drain from the roof of the
development. The "Proposed Drawings" (Part 2/3
and Part 3/3, dated 16 June 2017) have rainwater
pipes in the key (M3.4 Aluminium rainwater pipe,
powder coated graphite colour to match clay tile
colour). However, the pipes do not appear to be
included in the drawings. Nor are they illustrated in
the "Townscape Views" supporting document
(dated 04 July 2017).
Rainwater
The application indicates that (attenuated) surface
water will drain to the public combined sewer
located in Coburg Crescent. With sustainability in
mind, is it possible for some of the rainwater to be
collected or diverted for the following purposes:
a. To maintain adequate water levels in the pond
in the Palace Road Nature Garden (across
Palace Road, opposite the proposed
development). The pond is currently kept
topped up with a hose from the mains water
supply. As well as being a valuable resource for
the local community, the Nature Garden is likely
to be a valuable resource for service users.
b. To fill water butts so that the rainwater can be
used by community gardening groups on the
adjoining Palace Road Estate (for example, to
water fruit trees adjacent to the proposed
development).

Full details of the proposed materials are to be
secured via condition 3. In addition condition 4
is recommended to ensure that there would be
no external attachments to the building, other
than that approved.

The applicant advised that the pond is located
approximately 70m away from the site and the
levels on site are much lower. If connection is
established between the site and this pond, a
large pump would be required to collect all the
surface water from the site and pump via a
rising main for 70m to the pond. This solution
has been considered an unsustainable option.
The applicant advised that they would not be
proposing water butts within the public domain
as this is a freestanding element and can easily
get vandalised. The water butts could be placed
within the private courtyard; however this
means it is not accessible to the public.
The Council’s SUDS officer has confirmed that,
subject to condition, that the proposed drainage
strategy is acceptable and could achieve the
Council’s policy requirements. This matter is
further discussed at Section 6.9 of this report.

Other

There are daily instances of unsocial behaviour
from people sitting outside the learning centre
(opposite the application site). How such events
would be prevented from the proposed
development? How you would ensure the centre is
safe from predators?

What access are tenants and freeholders and
leaseholders going to have to any of the facilities?

The proposed development would be an
important resource mainly for the use and
benefit of Lambeth residents with learning
disabilities. It is not envisaged that the
Resource Centre would result in any unsocial
behaviour. The centre has been designed as a
safe place for residents and would include
standard security measures under the Design
Out Crime program. The Design Out Crime
Officer at the Metropolitan Police advised that
the proposed development has their full support
and is likely to achieve Secured by Design
certification.
The proposed shop, café and community space
would all face onto and be highly visible from
Palace Road. No additional security measures
above secured by design standards are
recommended.
Officers have included a condition to ensure
that Secured by Design certification will be
achieved.
The proposed café and community room on the
first floor would be open to the public. The
proposed shop on first floor is replacing an
existing shop, and it would have public access.

Page 32

There is a concern that the construction would take
too long and would disturb the local residents. How
long the construction is going to take place and
what inconvenience to residents getting in and out
of the estate on a regular basis?

The proposed Day Centre at ground floor, and
the residential accommodation with care on first
and second floor level would have private
access. In addition, the proposed garden within
the proposed courtyard would be part of the Day
Centre.
Officers recommended a condition requiring the
submission and approval of a method of
construction
statement,
prior
to
the
commencement of the construction works
(Condition 20). This would ensure that any
impact on residents is satisfactorily minimised
and mitigated.

4.3

Amenity Groups

4.3.1

Streatham Society - No Response.

4.3.2

Streatham Action - No Response.

4.4

Statutory and Other Consultees

4.4.1

Comments were received from a number of external and internal organisations. These are summarised
in the material below:

4.4.2

Development Control Enforcement Team
No response.

4.4.3

LBL Urban Design
The Urban Design Officer raised no objections subject to the following conditions:
•
•
•
•
•

Material schedule and samples – facing materials (Condition 3)
Balustrade details (specification, colour, material, design) and offer privacy to future occupants
(Condition 3)
Boundary treatments (height, material, colour, design shown at 1:10 scale) (Condition 3)
Detail of the refuse stores to be conditioned with doors shown at 1:20. (Condition 9)
Landscape Plan, including planting schedule, species specification and hard landscaping material
specification (Condition 5)

Case Officer’s comment: The Urban Design Officer’s comments are discussed in detail in section 6.5
of this report.
4.4.4

LBL Biodiversity (Parks and Open Space team)
The Biodiversity Officer from the Council’s Parks and Open Space team advised that the site is not of
any significant ecological interest and raised no objections regarding the loss of biodiversity, subject to
the implementation of the recommendations in the applicant’s Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (3
October 2017) (secured via condition 5), the most important of which is to ensure any site clearance is
undertaken outside the normal bird nesting season (Secured via condition 14).
The Officer advised that the loss of open space would be mitigated acceptably through the proposed
improvements to the remaining open space including the planting of new trees. The Biodiversity Officer
advised that the planting scheme offers an appropriate mixture of native and ornamental species, which
is good for local biodiversity and should also complement the locality including the adjacent Palace
Road Nature Garden.

4.4.5

LBL Transport and Highways

Page 33

The Transport officer advised that the proposed development is likely to generate an element of future
kerb-side (predominantly visitor) car parking across streets in the surrounding area, however there is
sufficient availability of parking spaces to accommodate this. The Transport Officer also advised that
the proposed two disabled car parking spaces would be sufficient, given that the proposal also includes
three minibuses to serve the transportation needs of the service users.
The Transport Officer raised no objection, subject to:
•
A Travel Plan Statement being submitted for approval prior to the Centre opening (Condition 11);
•
Further development of the Delivery and Servicing Management Plan (DSMP) to include vehicular
tracking for the largest type of refuse vehicle/HGV servicing the site, and the approval of the DSMP
by the Council's waste/recycling department (Condition 10).
Case Officer’s comment: This is further discussed in sections 6.14-6.19 of this report.
4.4.6

Veolia – The Council’s waste management company
Veolia has confirmed that the waste collection strategy is acceptable. This is further discussed in section
6.16 of this report.

4.4.7

LBL Tree Officer
The Council’s Tree Officer advised that the proposed loss of the seven trees on the application site
would impact on the green and leafy character of the area. To mitigate against this loss the officer
recommended that every removed mature tree should be replaced with four new canopy trees. The
applicant has agreed to this recommendation and will plant at least 28 new trees on the application site
and within the adjoining Palace Road Housing Estate.
The landscaping plans currently only show 20 new trees to be planted on the application site (a shortfall
of 8 new trees) – a landscaping condition (Condition 5) and a planning obligation under Section 106 of
the Act are recommended to secure all 28 of the new trees and other landscaping improvements on the
application site and within the surrounding Palace Road Housing Estate.
The Tree Officer also recommended that a young tree maintenance plan is conditioned for the newly
planted trees, this is to be secured by Condition 6.

4.4.8

Bioregional – the Council’s sustainability consultant
Bioregional have confirmed that, subject to conditions, the proposal meets all sustainability
requirements except those relating to the minimising of carbon dioxide emissions at Policy 5.2 of the
London Plan. Bioregional have advised that this can be offset by a Zero Carbon Offset Contribution of
£24,030, which the applicant has agreed to pay. This is further discussed at Section 6.8 of this report.
Case Officer’s comment: In response to Bioregional’s comments, officers recommend conditions 16
(Energy and Sustainability Statement), 17 (BREEAM certificate – prior commencement) and 18
(BREEAM certificate – prior occupation) to ensure the development is of an acceptable sustainability
standard. Furthermore, the Zero Carbon Offset Contribution of £24,030 is to be secured via a unilateral
undertaking under Section 106 of the Act.

4.4.9

LBL Flooding – SUDS
The Council’s Flooding Officer has advised that the drainage strategy is acceptable, subject to a
condition requiring a final drainage strategy to be submitted to and approved by the local planning
authority.
Case Officer’s comment: The Council’s Flooding Officer’s comments are supported, Officers
recommend condition 15 (Drainage Strategy), which is provided in section 10 of this report.

4.4.10 Design Out Crime Officer

Page 34
The Design out Crime Officer advised the proposed development is expected to easily achieve Secured
by Design (SBD) certification. The Design out Crime Officer advised the development has their full
support. Condition 7 is recommended to ensure the development is built to Secure by Design standards.
4.4.11 Regeneration Team Streatham
No response.
4.4.12 LBL Planning Policy
The Planning Policy Officer raised no objections to the proposed uses in principle. The Planning Policy
Officer noted that the proposal is for the replacement of community use and advised this is acceptable
in principle. Also, the proposed Class Use C2 units are supported in principle in this location, subject
to verifying that these will meet the needs of the local community and the other criteria outlined in
Policies S1, S2 and H8 of the Lambeth Local Plan. This is discussed at Sections 6.1 – 6.2 of this report;
in summary officers are satisfied that the proposed C2 units have been designed specifically to meet
the needs of end users.
The Planning Policy Officer advised that retail uses outside town centres normally need to be assessed
against the sequential test set out in paragraph 26 of the NPPF, however this would not be necessary
for the current application, which only proposes to replace an existing shop. This is further discussed at
Section 6.4 of this report.
The Planning Policy Officer advised that food and drink uses should primary be located in town centres,
and noted the application site is not within a town centre. However, the Planning Officer advised that a
café could be acceptable in principle in this location if the use is demonstrated to be ancillary to the day
centre use. This matter is discussed at Section 6.3 of this report; in summary officers are satisfied that
the proposed café is ancillary to the other uses in the proposed Resource Centre.
The Planning Policy Officer noted that the proposal would result in the net loss of open space within a
housing amenity estate area, and advised that this can only be accepted if it is demonstrated that
significant regeneration and community benefits would be achieved that could not be achieved in any
other way. In addition, the proposed development would have to provide appropriate compensatory
provision for the proposed loss of open space. This matter is discussed at Section 6.7 of this report; in
summary officers are satisfied that the proposal achieves these requirements.

5

POLICIES

5.1.1

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning decisions to be
made in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The
development plan in Lambeth is the London Plan 2015 (as amended by Minor Alterations to the London
Plan (MALP) dated 14 March 2016), and the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.

5.1.2

The current planning application has been considered against all relevant national, regional and local
planning policies as well as any relevant guidance. Set out below are those policies most relevant to
the application, however, consideration is made against the development plan as a whole.

5.2

The National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

5.2.1

The National Planning Policy Framework was published in 2012. This document sets out the
Government’s planning policies for England including the presumption in favour of sustainable
development and is a material consideration in the determination of all applications.

5.3

The Lambeth Local Plan 2015 (LLP)

5.3.1

The key relevant policies from the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 (LLP) are:




D1 Delivery and monitoring
D2 Presumption in favour of sustainable development
H1 Maximising housing growth

Page 35





























5.3.2

H8 Housing to meet specific community needs
ED7 Evening economy and food and drink uses
ED10 Local centres and dispersed local shops
S1 Safeguarding existing community premises
S2 New or improved community premises
T1 Sustainable travel
T2 Walking
T3 Cycling
T6 Assessing impacts of development on transport capacity
T7 Parking
T8 Servicing
EN1 Open space and biodiversity
EN4 Sustainable design and construction
EN5 Flood risk
EN6 Sustainable drainage systems and water management
EN7 Sustainable waste management
Q1 Inclusive environments
Q2 Amenity
Q3 Community safety
Q5 Local distinctiveness
Q6 Urban design: public realm
Q7 Urban design: new development
Q8 Design quality: construction detailing
Q9 Landscaping
Q10 Trees
Q12 Refuse/recycling storage
Q13 Cycle storage
Q15 Boundary treatments
ED14 Employment and training

The following Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) and other relevant documents:
Lambeth
 Parking Survey Guidance Notes
 Refuse & Recycling Storage Design Guide
 Waste Storage and Collection Requirements - Technical Specification
 Air Quality Planning Guidance Notes
London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)
 Social Infrastructure (May 2015)
 Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive Environment (October 2014)
 The control of dust and emissions during construction and demolition (July 2014)
 Sustainable Design and Construction (April 2014)
Other
 Site layout planning for daylight and sunlight, Littlefair, P., BRE 2011;
 Design Principles for Extra Care, Housing LIN 2008.
 Extra Care Housing. Development planning, control and management, RTPI, 2007

6

ASSESSMENT
The main planning issues arising from this application are:
Land Use

Appropriateness of community use on the site

Appropriateness of residential care homes on site

Page 36



Appropriateness of café use on site
Appropriateness of retail use on site

Scale and Design

Proposed building design
Open Space and Landscaping

Trees and Landscaping

Open Space and Biodiversity
Quality of the Proposed Development

Sustainability

Flooding and Sustainable drainage systems
Amenity impacts

Loss of Privacy and Overlooking

Outlook and Sense of Enclosure

Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing

Noise
Traffic and Highways

Access and Public Transport Accessibility

Trip Generation

Car Parking

Cycle Parking

Refuse, servicing and delivery arrangements
Other planning considerations

Construction impacts

S106 and CIL

6.1

Acceptability of community use (Class D1) on the site

6.1.1

The proposed Resource Centre would include day centre services for adults with learning disabilities
(Use Class D1).

6.1.2

Policy S1 (a) of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that the council will support and encourage the
most effective use of community premises to address different and changing priorities and needs in the
borough, in accordance with agreed strategies where relevant.

6.1.3

Policy S2 (a) of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that proposals for new or improved premises for
sports, recreation, and other community uses will be supported where they meet certain criteria. These
criteria with an officer response are discussed in the table below:
Policy criteria

Officer’s response
Following consultation with the day centre service
stakeholders and the Lambeth learning disabilities
assembly, the building has been specifically designed
for its intended purpose, and the expected needs of
the day centre users.

(i) the site or buildings are appropriate for
their intended use and accessible to the
community; and

The proposed development includes a community
space with café, located at first floor level and directly
accessible from Palace road. These facilities would be
made accessible to the general community.
The proposal would therefore be in compliance with
this criterion.

Page 37

(ii) the location, nature and scale of the
proposal, including hours of operation, do
not unacceptably harm the amenities of
the area through noise, disturbance, traffic
generation, congestion, local parking or
negative impacts on road safety; and

The proposal would not result in any unacceptable
amenity impacts to the surrounding area. This is
discussed in detail at sections 6.10-6.18 of this report.

The day centre service has been specifically designed
for the needs of its future users, however the floor
layout is such that it could be adapted for various other
D1 uses should the day centre service vacate the site.
(iii) buildings and facilities are designed to
be flexible, adaptable and sited to
maximise shared community use of
premises, where practical.

As this is a specialist facility that has been specifically
designed with the needs of its end users in mind, it is
appropriate that the day centre service focuses on the
needs of the intended users. The application does
however propose a community room at first floor level,
which is a simple space that could be utilised by a
variety of individuals or community groups and
organisations.

6.1.4

The proposed community space would be consistent with Policies S1 and S2 of the Lambeth Local Plan
(2015).

6.2

Appropriateness of residential care homes (Class C2) on the site

6.2.1

The proposed Resource Centre would include residential accommodation with care for adults with
disabilities (Use Class C2) at the first and second levels. This is specialist housing to meet the specific
needs of those with learning disabilities.

6.2.2

Policy H8 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that the council will support the provision of housing
to meet specific community needs, across a range of tenures, where it is demonstrated that the
accommodation meets certain criteria. These criteria with an officer response are discussed in the table
below:
Policy criteria
(i) would meet an identified local need;

(ii) will be suitable for the intended
occupiers in terms of the standard of
facilities, the level of independence, and
the provision of support and/or care;

Officer’s response
The need for the residential accommodation (and
indeed the entire project) has been identified and
confirmed by the Lambeth Adult Social Care team.
The proposed accommodation with care would
provide a mix of units for people with learning
disabilities. This would include: four short term rooms,
two flats for people with profound and multiple learning
disabilities (PMLD), and six long term flats. The
submitted planning statement confirmed the proposed
private amenity space would comply with the
guidelines set-out in the Housing LIN Design
Principles for Extra Care housing (2009) being in
accordance with paragraph 5.53 of the Lambeth Local
Plan (2015). The proposed accommodation would be
wheelchair assessable, it would include shared living
and dining areas, and also a garden. The scheme
would also provide a total of three bedrooms for staff
and carers. The three types of units accommodate
people with different disabilities, and provide a level of
independence where posible. The proposed
development has been designed to meet the specific
needs of the service users.

Page 38
(iii) is of a high design quality, relevant to
client needs, including inclusive design
and provision of internal and external
space;

(iv) will be accessible to public transport,
shops, services, community facilities and
social networks appropriate to the needs
of the intended occupiers;

(v) makes adequate provision for visitor /
carer parking and, where appropriate, for
the safe storage of wheelchairs and
mobility scooters;

(vi) is on a site and in a location suitable
for that particular use, having regard to
amenity, transport and other
environmental impacts; and

(vii) Contributes to creating a mixed,
balanced and inclusive community.

The proposed Resource Centre would be wheelchair
accessible and would provide private and also shared
areas. It has been specifically designed to meet the
needs of future residents. The rooms include external
space for use by residents and internal communal
areas.
Many of the future residents will have specialist
transport needs, which are to be met by one of three
minibuses associated with the Day Centre. Residents
will be able to be shuttled as required to nearby
services and facilities by staff. This is further
discussed in sections 6.14-6.15 of this report.
The proposed development would only provide two
disabled car parking spaces, however the Council’s
Transport Officer has advised this is acceptable as
discussed at Section 6.14 of this report.
The proposed accommodation would be wheelchair
accessible, and it would have wheelchair storage at
ground floor level. Furthermore, the proposed
accommodation units are specifically designed for
people with disabilities and include space for
wheelchair storage.
The proposed accommodation would be in a
predominately residential area and above a day centre
service that would provide specialist services for future
residents. It would have no inappropriate impacts on
the amenity of surrounding residential buildings, would
have no unacceptable transport impacts and would
have no unacceptable environmental impacts.
The proposed accommodation with care is designed
specifically for adults with profound and multiple
learning disabilities and will provide them with access
to specialist services to meet their needs. The
proposal meets this criterion about creating mixed,
balanced and inclusive communities.

6.2.3

The proposed accommodation with care for adults would be compliant with Policy H8 of the Lambeth
Local Plan (2015).

6.3

Appropriateness of the ancillary café use on the site

6.3.1

Policy ED7 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that the council wishes to support the evening
economy in its town centres whilst making sure that any adverse impact on local amenity is minimised
and that evening and food and drink uses should be primarily located in town centres and Central
Activities Zone frontage.

6.3.2

The Council’s policy team has advised that a café could be acceptable in principle in this location if the
use is ancillary to the other uses in the Resource Centre.

6.3.3

The café would be provided as part of the community space and the applicant has advised that the cafe
would be used by service users, staff and residents of the Resource Centre, and that it would also be
available to members of the public. In this regard, it would operate similar to a café in a hospital – the
cafe is provided for users/visitors/staff, but is also available for use by the general public. The proposed
café would be directly associated with and connected to the community space and it would be directly
accessed from the residential component of the Resource Centre. The café is subsidiary to the
Resource Centre and is therefore an appropriate use for the site.

6.4

Appropriateness of retail use on the site

Page 39
6.4.1

The proposal includes the relocation of the existing shop into the Resource Centre building. As there
would be no increase in retail floor area it is not necessary to apply the sequential test specified at
Paragraph 24 of the NPPF.

6.5

Proposed building design

6.5.1

Policy Q5 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that Lambeth’s local distinctiveness should be
sustained and reinforced through new development. Policy Q5 (b) states that proposals will be
supported if the design of a new development responds to positive aspects of the local context including
urban block and grain; built form and roofscapes; siting, orientation and layout; materials and; quality
and architectural detailing. Policy Q5 (c) states that where development proposals deviate from locally
distinct development patterns, applicants will be required to show in their design/heritage statements
that:
(i) the proposal clearly delivers design excellence; and
(ii) will make a positive contribution to its local and historic context.

6.5.2

Policy Q7 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that new development (new buildings and conversion
schemes) will generally be supported if: (i) it is of a quality design which is visually interesting, well
detailed, well-proportioned with adequate detailing/architectural interest (which can include accent
colour, decoration and ornamentation); and (ii) it has a bulk, scale/mass, siting, building line and
orientation which adequately preserves or enhances the prevailing local character. There are also policy
requirements relating to materials, windows, doors and entrances, plant and service equipment,
roofscapes and rooftops, and vehicular access.

6.5.3

The proposed building would mostly be constructed within currently vacant land. The development of
this site would be a significant improvement to the appearance of the surrounding area.
Scale and Massing

6.5.4

The Urban Design Officer raised no objections to the overall scale and massing of the building. The
Urban Design officer noted half of the frontage facing Palace Road is set back in order to provide public
uses such a shop with improved soft landscaping and street furniture. The protruding half of the building
line has a high ratio of glazing to solid, which offers views from the café space to the street. The Urban
Design Officer advised that this aids in announcing the use of the building from the north-west approach.

6.5.5

The Urban Design Officer’s comments are supported, and it is considered that the proposed building
would be of a good quality design, which is visually interesting as required by Policy Q7 (i). The
proposed bulk, scale and massing of the proposed building would respond to the heights of the
surrounding properties. The building would be three storey along Coburg Crescent, which would relate
to the massing of three storey building on the opposite site of road. The building would be sloping down
to one storey towards the Palace Road housing estate, and it would have reduced the bulk near the
Palace Road gardens. It is considered that this approach would successfully integrate the building to its
context.

6.5.6

The orientation of the proposed building would follow the street pattern. It is noted that the layout of the
previously existing Adult Education Centre appeared to be erratically positioned within the context of
the surrounding street scene. The proposed development corrects this, which is considered to be a
positive change and the proposal would be in full compliance with Policy Q7 part (ii). Furthermore the
applicant confirmed the building would be designed to be low maintenance and it would aim to achieve
an excellent BREEAM rating, this is discussed in section 6.8 of this report. The spaces internally are
arranged so that it could be adapted for different uses, in compliance with Policy Q7 (iii).
Architectural Expression and Materials

6.5.7

The Urban Design Officer supported the aesthetic expression of the design. The Urban Design Officer
advised that the calm approach to fenestration rhythm and the use of a minimal material palette is
welcomed, particularly given the more complex articulation of the overall asymmetrical pitched form of
the building.

Page 40
6.5.8

The applicant provided façade details and the Urban Design Officer advised that the inclusion of water
goods into the elements of the façade detail look positive and well integrated into the design. The Urban
Design Officer advised that further details of the proposed balustrade and glazing should provide privacy
and further details should be provided via a condition, and recommended that a material palette is also
secured via condition.

6.5.9

The Urban Design Officer’s comments are supported and it is considered that the detailed design of the
building would comply with Policy Q7 (iv). The proposal includes a plant which would be screened, as
required by Policy Q7 (v) and details of the proposed screening would be requested via a condition.

6.5.10 The proposed vehicular access and drop off area, would be design to relate to the adjacent area and it
would not prejudice or preclude active frontages. The building would also provide a new active frontage
along Palace road, which is considered to be a positive addition to the street scene.
6.5.11 Overall the proposed development would be of a high quality design and it would respond to positive
aspects of the surrounding area. Officers recommend condition 3 to ensure that the materials and
detailed design of the building are appropriate. The proposed building would be in compliance with
Policy Q5 and Q7 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.
6.6

Trees and Landscaping

6.6.1

Policy Q9 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 seeks to protect existing planting and landscape features of
value, and to maximise opportunities for greening.

6.6.2

Policy Q10 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 seeks to protect existing trees and encourages the planting
of additional trees. Particularly relevant for the proposal is part (c) of the policy, which states that ‘’where
trees are located within a development site, the proposal will be supported only where it has been
demonstrated that: (i) trees of significant amenity, historic or ecological/habitat conservation value have
been retained as part of the site layout; (ii) the retained trees can be satisfactorily protected from
construction impacts and site works during the development stage; and (iii) the retained trees have been
positively integrated, on a sustainable basis, as part of the site layout.’’
Removal of trees

6.6.3

The proposed development would result in the removal of seven trees, none of which are subject to a
Tree Preservation Order or protected through a conservation area. The applicant has submitted an
Arboricultural Assessment in support of the removal of these trees, which has been reviewed by the
Council’s Tree Officer.

6.6.4

The table below lists all of the trees on the site and advises their tree quality category, whether they are
to be retained or removed, and if they are to be removed, why it is appropriate that tree is removed.
Tree category –
quality
Category U - very poor

Removed or
retained?
Removed at
a later stage

Ash
Norway
maple
Yew
Ash

Category C - low
Category B - moderate

Removed
Retained

Category B - moderate
Category B - moderate

Retained
Removed

Category A – high

Retained

G1

Turkey
Oak
Lime

Category B - moderate

Removed

G2

Yew

Category C - low

Retained

Tree
No.
T1

Species

T2
T3
T4
T5
T6

Lime

Reasons it is appropriate for this
tree to be removed?
The tree report advises this tree should
be removed for health and safety
reasons irrespective of the proposed
development.
The tree is of low quality (category C)
The tree is not of high quality and it is
not protected
The tree report advises this tree
should be removed as it consist of
major deadwood.
-

Page 41
G3

Removed
Category B - moderate

Removed

G5

Ash
Lime
Norway
maple
Lime

Category B - moderate

Removed

G6

Lime

Category B - moderate

Retained

G4

The tree is not of high quality and it is
not protected
The tree is not of high quality and it is
not protected
The tree is not of high quality and it is
not protected
-

6.6.5

In relation to the Lime tree T1, the Council’s Tree Officer has confirmed that it is a poor specimen and
recommended that it should be removed irrespective of the proposed development for health and safety
reasons. Officers recommend this be secured via a condition (Condition 5) and an unilateral undertaking
under s106 of the Act.

6.6.6

The Council’s Tree Officer advised that the proposed loss of the seven trees would impact on the green
and leafy character of the area, but that this could be compensated for through the planting of four new
trees for every tree removed. The applicant has agreed to this measure and will plant at least 28 new
trees on the application site and elsewhere within the Palace Road Housing Estate.

6.6.7

The landscaping plan currently only shows 20 new trees to be planted on the application site (a shortfall
of eight new trees). To secure at least 28 new trees, a landscaping condition (Condition 5) and a
planning obligation under Section 106 of the Act are recommended.

6.6.8

The Tree Officer also advised that a young tree management plan should be in place to ensure that the
new trees are established successfully in to the landscape – this is to be secured by Condition 6.

6.6.9

In conclusion, the proposal would result in the removal of seven trees of moderate quality that would
impact on the green and leafy character of the area, however this is to be mitigated through the planting
of 28 new trees. On this basis, the proposal is considered to be consistent with policies Q9 and Q10 of
the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.
Landscaping

6.6.10 The Council’s Urban Design Officer advised that the surrounding area is a verdant setting for the
application site, and as such demands a high quality landscaped response. The proposal does have a
strategically worked up landscape plan with a clear series of boundary treatments that would distinguish
public and private spaces. The hedges that buffer the building, particularly to the east where the building
opens up, would secure a pleasant and contextual boundary treatment. The Council’s Biodiversity
Officer advised that the proposed planting scheme would offer an appropriate mixture of native and
ornamental species, which would be good for local biodiversity and would also complement the locality
including the adjacent Palace Road Nature Garden.
6.6.11 The landscaping scheme includes public realm improvements including the installation of wheelchair
accessible crossings on Palace Road, public benches, cycle parking stands, enhanced street (and path)
lighting, and improved pavers / ground coverings.
6.6.12 The landscaping scheme also includes additional planting and landscaping improvements to the
grounds of the Palace Road Housing Estate, however full details of these improvements have not been
finalised. The landscaping improvements to the Palace Road Housing Estate would include a variety of
new planting (trees, shrubs, grasses) to encourage and support biodiversity, and enhancement of
pedestrian connectivity from Palace Road Housing Estate to the Palace Road Nature Garden (opposite
the application site), helping to make the open space a more pleasant place for residents to spend time
in.
6.6.13 To ensure the hard and soft landscaping details are of a sufficient quality (both on-site and within the
Palace Road Housing Estate), it is recommended that the applicant be required to submit a final hard
and soft landscaping plan (Condition 5). In addition public realm and landscaping improvements to
Palace Road, Coburg Crescent and the Palace Road Housing Estate are to be secured via a unilateral
undertaking under Section 106 of the Act and entry into a Section 278 Agreement (or other relevant
highways agreement) as required.

Page 42

6.6.14 In conclusion the proposed landscaping scheme is considered to be of a high quality and will
complement the proposed Resource Centre building and improve the quality of the communal amenity
space in the Palace Road Housing Estate. On this basis, the proposal is considered to be consistent
with policies Q9 and Q10 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.
6.7

Open Space and Biodiversity
Open Space

6.7.1

The development would result in the net loss of approximately 773.7sqm of open space (both green
and hard standing), which represents approximately 3.13% of the currently existing 24,753 sqm open
space in the Palace Road Housing Estate.

6.7.2

Policy EN1 of the Lambeth Local Plan seeks to protect open spaces and their functions and only allows
the loss of such spaces if one of three tests is met. The test relevant to this application is found at Policy
EN1 (a) (ii), which states “In the case of housing estate amenity areas, significant regeneration and
community benefits would be achieved that could not be achieved in any other way, and appropriate
compensatory provision for the loss of open space is made, including improvements to the quality of
the remaining open space.” Officers consider that this test has been met for the following reasons:


Regeneration: The application proposes to regenerate the site, the majority of which has been
vacant since the former Adult Education Centre was demolished in 2014. It would provide an
important resource for Lambeth residents and specialist housing for those with learning
disabilities.

Community benefits: The proposed development would deliver significant community benefits,
including:
o Provision of specialist accommodation and care facilities for people with learning disabilities;
o A community space that can be hired for use by local individuals and community groups; and
o Landscaping and public realm improvements, including enhanced planting on site, the
installation of wheelchair accessible crossings on Palace Road, and the planting of new trees
and planting in the Palace Road Housing Estate.

Could not be achieved in any other way: The applicant explored several options for the
relocation of the day centre services, and advised that the Coburg Crescent site was chosen
because (i) it is the only option that would allow a single move of the day centre service from
Lambeth Walk to the proposed new build development, and (ii) it is situated within the most
suitable location for the service within the centre of Lambeth. The other options that were explored
by the applicant would not allow the single move of the service, and most importantly provided
only a lower level of accessibility.

Appropriate compensatory provision for the loss of open space: The proposal includes
landscaping improvement to the remaining open space on the application site, to sections of the
Palace Road Housing Estate, and along Palace Road and Coburg Crescent. As stated in Section
6.6 above, the landscaping improvements to the Palace Road Housing Estate would include a
variety of new planting (trees, shrubs, grasses) to encourage and support biodiversity, and
enhancement of pedestrian connectivity from Palace Road Housing Estate to the Palace Road
nature garden (opposite the application site), helping to make the open space a more pleasant
place for residents to spend time in.
The Council’s Tree Officer and Biodiversity Officer advised that the proposed landscaping
improvements would be adequate to mitigate the loss of open space and that the planting scheme
would offer an appropriate mixture of native and ornamental species, which would be good for
local biodiversity and would also complement the locality including the adjacent Palace Road
Nature Garden.
The image below (Figure 7) indicates where the new planting is to be provided, with new trees
shaded in light green. It is recommended that the proposed landscaping improvements are
secured through a landscaping condition (condition 5) and a unilateral undertaking under Section
106 of the Act.

Page 43

Figure 7 – Proposed landscaping and public realm improvements to the application site, the Palace Road
Housing Estate and along Palace Road and Coburg Crescent

6.7.3

Given the above, officers consider that significant regeneration and community benefits would be
achieved that cannot be achieved in another way, and that the proposed landscaping strategy would
mitigate the proposed loss of open space. The proposal is therefore compliant with Policy EN1 of the
Lambeth Local Plan 2015.
Biodiversity

6.7.4

Policy EN1 (b) of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that the council will meet requirements for open
space by preventing development which would result in loss, reduction in area or significant harm to the
nature conservation or biodiversity value of an open space.

6.7.5

The applicant submitted a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, which found no protected species or locally
important floral species or habitats were on the site. The report found that the grassland on the site and
the planted beds were of negligible importance and that no mitigation for their loss was required.
However, the report did find that the existing trees provide nesting for birds, which required mitigation
measures, namely that clearing of the trees should happen between September and February only to
avoid the bird breeding season.

Page 44
6.7.6

The Council’s Biodiversity Officer reviewed the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal and confirmed that the
site is not currently of any ecological interest and advised that the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal gives
a sound overview of any potential ecological risks. The officer supported the application, subject to the
implementation of the recommendations in the applicant’s Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (3 October
2017) (secured via condition 5), the most important of which is to ensure any site clearance is
undertaken outside the normal bird nesting season (Secured via condition 14). Other measures included
designing fences to include hedgehog links and management of invasive species.

6.7.7

The Council’s Biodiversity Officer reviewed the landscaping scheme and advised that it would offer an
appropriate mixture of native and ornamental species, which is good for local biodiversity and would
complement the locality including the adjacent Palace Road Nature Garden. The officer advised that
the previously existing open spaces were not well used for play or public recreation.

6.7.8

In conclusion, the proposed scheme achieves the biodiversity policy at Policy EN1 (b) of the Lambeth
Local Plan 2015.

6.8

Sustainability

6.8.1

Policy EN4 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that (a) all development will be required to meet high
standards of sustainable design and construction feasible, relating to the scale, nature and form of the
proposal, and that (b) proposals should demonstrate in a supporting statement that sustainable design
standards are integral to the design, construction and operation of the development. Non-residential
developments should also be accompanied by a pre-assessment, demonstrating how the following
BREEAM standards, or any future replacement standards, will be met: (i) All new non-residential
development and non-self-contained residential accommodation, should meet at least BREEAM
‘Excellent’ unless it is demonstrated that it is not technically feasible or viable to do so, in which case
proposals should demonstrate a ‘Very Good’ rating with a minimum score of 63 per cent…

6.8.2

Policy EN 4 (c) states that all non-residential development proposals should incorporate living roofs and
walls where feasible and appropriate to the character and context of the development. Proposals should
include a maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development

6.8.3

Policy 5.2 (A) of the London Plan states development proposals should make the fullest contribution
to minimising carbon dioxide emissions in accordance with the following energy hierarchy:
1.
Be lean: use less energy
2.
Be clean: supply energy efficiently
3.
Be green: use renewable energy

6.8.4

Policy 5.2 (B) states that the Mayor will work with boroughs and developers to ensure that major
developments meet the following targets for carbon dioxide emissions reduction in buildings. These
targets are expressed as minimum improvements over the Target Emission Rate (TER) outlined in the
national Building Regulations leading to zero carbon residential buildings from 2016 and zero carbon
non-domestic buildings from 2019. Furthermore the policy states that from 2016 the residential buildings
shall be zero carbon, and from 2016 non-domestic buildings shall comply with the building regulation
requirements (e.g. 35% as set out in Part L 2013 for commercial development).

6.8.5

The applicant submitted an Energy and Sustainability Assessment, which follows the energy hierarchy
set out in Policy 5.2 of the London Plan, and a Pre-Assessment BREEAM Certificate. The Council’s
Sustainability Consultant advised that subject to conditions (discussed below) the proposal would
achieve all of the required sustainability standards, except that relating to carbon reductions. The
Energy and Sustainability Assessment states that the development could achieve a 22.54% reduction
in carbon, whereas the London Plan specifies a 35% carbon reduction requirement.

6.8.6

Where the carbon reduction target cannot be met, a cash-in-lieu contribution (known as a Zero Carbon
Offset Contribution) can be provided to offset the remaining emissions. For this development the
Council’s Sustainability Consultant has calculated that a cash-in-lieu contribution of £24,030 would be
payable. The applicant has agreed to pay this contribution, which is to be secured via a unilateral
undertaking entered into under S106 of the Act.

Page 45
6.8.7

The Pre-Assessment BREEAM Certificate demonstrates that the proposed development has the
potential to achieve a score of 72.67%, which equates to an Excellent BREEAM rating, in line with policy
EN4(b) of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015. This outcome is to be secured by conditions 17 and 18.

6.8.8

The Council’s Sustainability Consultant has recommended that the Energy and Sustainability
assessment should be updated to demonstrate how materials that have a low embodied energy, can
be sustainably sourced, and how the use of existing resources will be maximized and waste generated
from demolition and construction minimized. This outcome is to be secured by condition 16.

6.8.9

In summary, it is considered that subject to conditions and the payment of the cash-in-lieu contribution
(the Zero Carbon Offset Contribution) that the proposed development would be consistent with Policy
EN4 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.

6.9

Flooding and Sustainable Drainage Systems

6.9.1

Policy EN5 (c) of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 requires the preparation of a Flood Risk Assessment
(FRA). Furthermore Policy EN5 (e) states that for all developments, it must be demonstrated that the
development will be safe, and where required, it will reduce fluvial, tidal, surface run-off and groundwater
food risk and manage residual risks through appropriate food risk measures, including the use of
sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) in accordance with policy EN6. Measures to mitigate flooding
from sewers should be discussed with Thames Water Utilities Ltd. and be included in development
proposals for which this is a risk. The application site is located within Flood Risk Zone 1, which is
characterised with low probability of flooding.

6.9.2

The applicant has provided detailed information on the proposed SuDS and the proposed drainage
layout. The Council’s Flood Risk Officer has reviewed this information and advised that it is acceptable,
however the proposed drainage plan should be updated via condition to account for a 1 in 100 year
flood event plus 40% to account for climate change. The current information only accounts for a 1 in
100 year event plus 20% for climate change. In addition further information should be provided regarding
infiltration tests to justify the use of a single underground storage tank.

6.9.3

The Floor Risk Officer’s comments are supported and condition 15 is recommended, requiring a final
drainage strategy to be submitted prior commencement of the development.

6.10

Loss of Privacy and Overlooking

6.10.1 Local Plan Policy Q2 states that development will be supported if (ii) acceptable standards of privacy
are provided without a diminution of the design quality; (iii) adequate outlooks are provided avoiding
wherever possible any unacceptable levels of overlooking.
6.10.2 The proposed development would be located within the Palace Road Housing Estate and the properties
to the north of the application site are the most sensitive in terms of loss of privacy and overlooking.
The proposed development does have three windows at first floor and four windows at the second floor,
which would not achieve the minimum privacy distances between windows of 18m as set out in the BRE
Trust guidelines. Each of these windows is to be fitted with obscured windows to block any direct views
into nearby existing residential windows. The proposed development would provide an acceptable level
of privacy in accordance with Policy Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015. The details of the windows
would be secured via condition 3.
6.11

Outlook and Sense of Enclosure

6.11.1 Policy Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that development will be supported if: (i) visual amenity
from adjoining sites and from the public realm is not unacceptably compromised; (iii) adequate outlooks
are provided avoiding wherever possible any undue sense of enclosure or unacceptable levels of
overlooking (or perceived overlooking).

Page 46
6.11.2 The proposed building would have a maximum height of approximately 14m (to the pitch of the roof)
and it would be located a minimum distance of 10.36m from the nearest residential building and 8.24m
from the nearest residential garden. The proposed setback distances are acceptable and the proposed
development would not result in unacceptable impact to the outlook of these properties or result in an
undue sense of enclosure to any gardens.
6.12

Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing

6.12.1 Policy Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that development will be supported if: (iv) it would not
have an unacceptable impact on levels of daylight and sunlight on the host building and adjoining
property; and (vi) adequate outdoor amenity space is provided free from excessive overshadowing.
Furthermore paragraph 10.5 of the policy text states that ‘’the council will use established industry
standards when assessing schemes, including ‘Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight (BRE
Trust, 2011) and any other relevant standards.’’
6.12.2 The BRE guide advises that if the Vertical Sky Component (VSC) is both less than 27% and less than
0.8 times its former value, then the occupants of the existing building will notice the reduction in the
amount of skylight. The applicant submitted a Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing report, which
demonstrates that all windows would pass the daylight BRE VSC test. The proposal would not result in
any unacceptable loss of daylight.
6.12.3 The Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing report includes a sunlight assessment and found that all
existing windows in surrounding houses would meet the BRE’s minimum criteria for annual and winter
sunlight.
6.12.4 The report also demonstrated that there would be no unacceptable overshadowing impact to existing
surrounding amenity areas. At least 50% of each area nearby amenity area would receive the required
2 hours of sunlight on 21st March.
6.12.5 The proposed development would not result in an unacceptable loss of light or overshadowing and
achieves Policy Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.
6.13

Noise

6.13.1 Policy Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that development will be supported if (v) the adverse
impact of noise is reduced to an acceptable level through the use of attenuation, distance, screening,
or internal layout/orientation; (vii) service equipment is fully integrated into the building envelope or
located in visually inconspicuous location within effective and robust screening/enclosures, and does
not cause disturbance thought its operation.
6.13.2 The proposed shop and community room, including the cafe would face Palace Road, and would be set
away from the residential properties within the housing estate. Despite this separation distance,
condition 13 is recommended to ensure that any noise from amplified sound is limited to an acceptable
level and does not exceed the background noise when measured close to the neighbouring residential
windows.
6.13.3 The application proposes two plant areas that have been fully integrated into the building design. No
plant equipment would be externally visible. However, there is still potential that the proposed could
generate noise.
6.13.4 The applicant submitted a Noise Impact Assessment, which confirms that an acoustic enclosure around
the condensing units (with minimum attenuation of 25 dB(A)), would be adequate to ensure any noise
from the plant would be below the background noise levels when measured from the nearest residential
window. To protect the acoustic amenity of the surrounding properties officers recommend condition
12, which would ensure noise levels from the plant always stay below background noise levels. In
addition the details of the proposed acoustic enclosure to be provided as part of Condition 3, in order to
ensure the proposed enclosure would be effective and robust, as required by Policy Q2 of the Lambeth
Local Plan 2015.
6.14

Access / Public Transport Accessibility

Page 47
6.14.1 Policy T6 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that planning applications will be supported where
they do not have unacceptable transport impacts, including cumulative impacts on highways safety,
traffic flows, congestion of the road network, on-street parking, footway space desire lines and
pedestrian flows, and all other transport modes, including public transport and cycling.
6.14.2 The application site is located within an area of moderate public transport accessibility level (PTAL,
score of 3). The Council’s Transport Officer noted that there are several bus stops within approximately
300-500m radius serving the site, and two rail stations within approximately 1km from the site.
6.14.3 The proposed development has specialist transport and accessibility requirements, with many users of
the day centre service and residents requiring transport assistance – this is predominantly to be met
through the use of three minibuses that will transport users and residential to and from the application
site. The application proposes a drop-off area north of the site with space for all three minibuses to park
and load/unload passengers.
6.14.4 The Transport Officer advised that the proposed pedestrian access to the shop and community space
would be from Palace Road. Both a stepped and ramped access would be provided to facilitate access
by people with mobility challenges. Access to the private residential unit to the north of the site will be
provided directly from Coburg Crescent.
6.14.5 The proposal also includes the installation of wheelchair accessible crossings on Palace Road to
improve access and mobility in the area.
6.15

Trip Generation

6.15.1 Policy T1 (a) of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 states that the council will promote a sustainable pattern
of development in the borough, minimising the need to travel and reducing dependence on the private
car. Furthermore part (c) states that development that generates a significant number of trips will be
required to be located in an area with an appropriate level of public transport accessibility.
6.15.2 The Transport Statement advises that the majority of service users would arrive at the site by minibus
as they are not able to arrive without assistance. The Transport Officer advised that proposed
development will generate approximately 26 new vehicular trips between 08.00 and 17.00 per day, on
average. The Transport Officer advised that the trip generation of the proposed Resource Centre will
not have an adverse impact on the localised free flow of traffic. Furthermore, the Transport Officer
advised that vehicular trips linked to the Centre will create no noticeable or significant increase in
existing queue lengths at local junctions.
6.15.3 The submitted transport statement advises that members of staff would be encouraged to cycle or to
use public transport to arrive at work. The Transport Officer noted that parking will not be provided, and
due to general delays in travelling by car during peak periods, it is unlikely that staff will choose to drive
to the site. To encourage dependence on the private car, the Transport Officer recommended that an
employee travel plan statement for both visitors and employees should be secured (condition 11).
6.15.4 It is considered that subject to the condition that the proposed development would result in acceptable
trip generation that would comply with Policy T1 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.
6.16

Car Parking

6.16.1 Policy T7 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015) supports car free development, particularly in areas where
alternative modes of transport are available and where public accessibility is high.
6.16.2 The application site is not located within a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ), and on street parking is
unrestricted. The proposed development would provide two disabled car parking bays within the drop
off area at the rear of the building, and no other on-site car parking is proposed (please note that these
two spaces are separate to the spaces for the minibuses). The Transport Officer advised that the level
of car parking provision accords with the car parking standards set out within the London Plan (MALP,
2016), and noted that there is adequate availability of local kerbside parking spaces for potential
overspill of parking linked to the proposed New Resource Centre, as the available parking surveys
demonstrate that Palace Road is at 65-74% of parking capacity on average, and Roupell Road is at 4573% of parking capacity.

Page 48

6.16.3 The Transport Officer noted that the installation of the loading bay will result in a loss of five on-street
parking spaces but the impact on local parking provision will be negligible and therefore acceptable.
6.16.4 Based on the above, it is considered that the proposal would not result in unacceptable impact on onstreet parking and the proposed development would comply with Policy T7 of the Lambeth Local Plan
2015.
6.17

Cycle Parking

6.17.1 Policy T3 states that Lambeth would require the provision of appropriate secure and covered cycle
parking facilities in accordance with the minimum standards set out in the London Plan and will expect
these standards to be exceeded. Policy Q13 sets the requirements of the cycle storage design.
6.17.2 The application proposes 14 long-term cycle parking spaces to be provided within a secure store located
near the drop off area at ground floor level. Details of the proposed cycle storage would be requested
via condition 8 (Cycle storage). In addition 6 short-stay Sheffield stands (12 cycle parking spaces) are
proposed near the Palace Road entrance for users/patrons of the shop, community space and cafe.
The Transport Officer’s advised that this provision of cycle parking spaces meets London Plan
requirements.
6.18

Refuse, recycling and servicing

6.18.1 Policy Q12 sets the council’s requirements for refuse/recycling storage, with further guidance provided
within the Council’s ‘Waste & Recycling Storage and Collection Requirements: Guidance for Architects
and Developers’ (2013) and the Council’s Refuse and Recycling Storage Guide (2013).
Refuse Storage and Collection
6.18.2 The development would provide two areas for refuse storage and collection. The first would be for the
use of the day centre service (not including the community space with cafe) and the residential
accommodation. It would be located at the north of the site, and there would be direct access provided
from the refuse store to Coburg Crescent. The Council’s Transport Officer has advised that refuse
collection vehicles would collect the bins on-street, directly from the store. The bins would be returned
immediately to the storage area, which would be secured via a condition (Condition 10).
6.18.3 The second refuse store would be provided at the south of the site between the community space with
café and the shop. The community space and cafe would have separate areas for refuse and recycling
materials. On collection days, bins would be collected directly from the storage area and transported
via the access ramp to the refuse vehicle on Palace Road. The bins would be returned immediately to
the storage area, which would be secured via a condition (Condition 10).
6.18.4 The Council’s waste management company ‘Veolia’ reviewed the proposed waste and recycling storage
area and confirmed the proposed location of the bin stores and the proposed collection arrangements
would be acceptable.
6.18.5 The Council’s Urban Design Officer advised the proposed refuse storages were acceptable, subject to
a condition requiring the detailed design to be consistent with Policy Q12 of the Lambeth Local Plan
2015 (Condition 9).
Deliveries
6.18.6 Deliveries are proposed to be undertaken from a new dedicated loading bay along the site frontage on
Palace Road. A ramped access would be provided to the community centre, and from there, access
can also be gained to the remainder of the Day Centre. The Transport Officer noted that a Delivery and
Servicing Management Plan (DSMP) has been prepared to support the application. This contains details
of how delivery and servicing movements will be managed so as to reduce the potential for conflict with
pedestrians, cyclists and other road users. The Transport Officer reviewed this document and offered
no objections to the strategies within. However the Transport Officer noted that a tracking/swept-path
analysis for the largest type of refuse vehicle servicing the site has not been provided, and requested
updated DSMP, which is recommended to be secured by condition 10.

Page 49

Road Works
6.18.7 The application includes the construction of a new loading bay, footpaths, crossovers and other works
on the public highway. These are to be secured by way of a unilateral undertaking entered into under
S106 agreement and S278 agreement compliant with Policy D4 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.
6.19

Construction impacts

6.19.1 Policy T8 states that planning applications for major developments should include a Construction
Management and Logistics Plan that is appropriate to the scale of the development, demonstrating
arrangements for construction traffic and how environmental, traffic and amenity impacts will be
minimised.
6.19.2 The applicant has not provided a draft Construction Management and Logistics Plan, however officers
do advise that the application site is large and that construction vehicles should be able to access the
site (and park where required), without unacceptable impacts to the amenity of surrounding residential
properties.
6.19.3 To ensure the amenity of surrounding residential properties is appropriately protected during the
construction period, it is recommended that a condition is imposed requiring the preparation and
approval of a Method of Construction Statement (Condition 20).
6.20

Planning Obligations and CIL

6.20.1 Local Plan Policy D4 specifies when Section 106 planning obligations will be sought. This includes to
fund local improvements and to mitigate the impact of development. Given that the Council owns the
land comprised in the application site, the mechanism that is proposed to secure the required planning
obligations is the provision of a unilateral undertaking pursuant to S106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
6.20.2 In accordance with Policy D4, officers have discussed with the applicant the need for planning
obligations. The final package of obligations reflects current circumstances and the individual aspects
of the development. The draft heads of terms for the planning obligation have been agreed with the
applicant and are set out below. The obligations are considered necessary to make the development
acceptable in planning terms and are considered to meet the relevant tests set out in Regulation 122 of
the CIL Regulations.
Sustainability and carbon emissions


Zero Carbon Offset Contribution of £24,030.

Public Realm and Streetscape Improvements




Prior to occupation, the developer shall deliver the improvements to Palace Road and the
Palace Road Housing Estate as set out within the hard and soft landscaping scheme approved
under Condition 5. This is necessary to ensure the proposal provides appropriate mitigation for
the loss of open space as required by Policy EN1 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.
Entry into a Section 278 Agreement (or other relevant highways agreement) for public realm
and highways works.

Employment, Skills, Training and Labour
 Submission of an Employment and Skills Plan to cover the construction phase and end use
phase.
 Local Labour in Construction Contribution of £21,180.65.
 Employment and Training Contribution of £31,701.33.
Travel Plan Statement Monitoring Fee


Travel Plan Statement Monitoring Fee of £2,000.00.

Page 50
Monitoring Fee
 Monitoring Fee £2,694.10.
6.20.3 The Employment, Skills, Training and Labour obligations relate to Policy ED14 of the Lambeth Local
Plan 2015, which states the council will support employment and training schemes and local
businesses.
6.20.4 If the application is approved and the development is implemented, a liability to pay the Lambeth
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) may arise. The London Mayoral CIL may also be applicable.

7

CONCLUSION

7.1

This application is for the development of a new “Resource Centre” providing a day centre service for
adults with learning disabilities (Use Class D1), long term and short term residential accommodation
with care for adults with disabilities (Use Class C2), and an ancillary ‘community space’ with café, and
a shop (Use Class A1).

7.2

The proposed uses are acceptable for the site, which was previously used for community and still is
used as a shop. There would be no unacceptable transport or amenity impacts from the proposed
development.

7.3

The proposed building design would relate to the street pattern and the massing and height of the
surrounding buildings. Subject to conditions and the payment of a Zero Carbon Offset Contribution, the
proposed building would also be consistent with sustainability policies.

7.4

The proposed development would result in the loss of open space accounting for approximately 3.13%
of the total open space within the Palace Road Housing Estate. The loss of open space is acceptable
in this case because it achieves the requirements of Policy EN1 (a) (ii) of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015
- the development provides significant regeneration and community benefits, and appropriate
compensation for the loss of open space including improvements to the quality of the remaining open
space and other landscaping improvements to the Palace Road Housing Estate.

7.5

The proposed removal of seven trees would impact on the green and leafy character of the area,
however this would be mitigated through their replacement with 28 new trees (four new trees for each
tree removed).

7.6

The proposed development would not result in any unacceptable amenity impacts – there would be no
unacceptable loss of light to or overshadowing of the neighbouring properties, and the proposed
buildings would not result in unacceptable impact on visual amenity, privacy or (subject to condition)
increase of noise.

7.7

The proposed Recourse Centre would provide a minibus service for the residents and day centre service
users to meet their transport needs. The scheme would also be supported by a Travel Plan Statement
encouraging customers and employees to reduce reliance on the private car. Although there would be
some increase in on-street parking demand (mainly from visitors to the site), the Council’s transport
team has confirmed that the proposed development would not have an unacceptable impact on the
local highway network or parking stress levels in surrounding streets.

7.8

The approval of the proposed development would be subject to conditions and informatives as set out
in sections 10 and 11 of this report. The conditions and planning obligations are necessary to make the
application acceptable in planning terms.

7.9

For these reasons and those set out throughout this report, and subject to the conditions, planning
obligations and informatives detailed below, officers consider that the Development would be in
compliance with the Development Plan for the Borough, and that there are no material considerations
of sufficient weight that the application should be refused.

8

EQUALITY DUTY AND HUMAN RIGHTS

Page 51

8.1

In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty, the Council must have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination and advance equality of opportunity, as set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.
In making this recommendation, regard has been given to the Public Sector Equality Duty and the
relevant protected characteristics (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation).

8.2

In line with the Human Rights Act 1998, it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a way which is
incompatible with a Convention right, as per the European Convention on Human Rights. The human
rights impact have been considered, with particular reference to Article 1 of the First Protocol (Protection
of property), Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life) and Article 14 (Prohibition of
discrimination) of the Convention.

8.3

The Human Rights Act 1998 does not impair the right of the state to make decisions and enforce laws
as deemed necessary in the public interest. The recommendation is considered appropriate in
upholding the Council's adopted and emerging policies and is not outweighed by any engaged rights.

9

RECOMMENDATION

9.1

Resolve to grant planning permission subject to conditions and subject to the provision of a unilateral
undertaking under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure the planning
obligations listed in this report.

9.2

Agree to delegate authority to the Director of Planning, Transport and Development to:
a. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report
b. Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out in this report pursuant to Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act.

9.3

10

In the event that the committee resolves to refuse planning permission and there is a subsequent
appeal, delegated authority is given to officers, having regard to the heads of terms set out in the report,
to negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations within the unilateral undertaking in order to meet
the requirements of the Planning Inspector

CONDITIONS
Standard conditions

1)

Time Limit
The development to which this permission relates must be begun no later than three years from the date
of this decision notice.
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2)

In accordance with approved plans
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved plans
and drawings listed in this decision notice, other than where those details are altered pursuant to the
conditions of this planning permission.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
Design conditions

3)

Details, Samples and Materials

Page 52
Notwithstanding the details shown on the drawings hereby approved, prior to the commencement of the
above ground works hereby permitted, detailed drawings (including sections) at 1:20 scale, and samples
of the materials to be used in the external elevations shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development hereby permitted shall thereafter be built and maintained in
accordance with the approved details and samples. The following details and samples are required:
a) Material schedule and samples panels of the facing materials shall be provided on site;
b) Detailed drawings of Balustrades (specification, colour, material, design);
c) Details of windows, including details of measures to offer privacy and mitigate potential
overlooking;
d) Detailed drawings of Boundary treatments (material, colour, design shown at 1:10 scale); and
e) Detailed drawings of the acoustic enclosure surrounding the external plan.
The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory and to protect the amenity
of surrounding properties (Policies Q2, Q7 and Q8 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
4)

No external features other than approved
No plumbing or pipes, other than rainwater pipes, shall be fixed to the external faces of the building.
Reason: To ensure an appropriate standard of design and to protect the character of the surrounding
area (Policies Q5, Q8 and Q22 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015).

5)

Landscaping: Plans, Specifications and Schedules
Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a landscaping scheme shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The landscaping scheme shall be
thereafter carried out in accordance with the approved details within 6 months of the date of occupation.
All tree, shrub and hedge planting included within the above specification shall accord with BS3936:1992,
BS4043:1989 and BS4428:1989 (or subsequent superseding equivalent) and current Arboricultural best
practice. The submitted details are expected to demonstrate the following:
a) The quantity, size, species, position and the proposed time of planting of all trees, hedges, grass,
shrubs, ground flora or climbers, and cover areas of open space within the development
including, walls and boundary features;
b) An indication of how they integrate with the proposal in the long term with regard to their mature
size and anticipated routine maintenance and protection;
c) Specification of which shrubs and hedges to be planted that are intended to achieve a significant
size and presence in the landscape;
d) Confirmation that the recommended mitigation measures within section 5 of the approved
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (3 October 2017) have been incorporated in the landscaping
plan;
e) Lime tree T1 (as shown on plan ref P2890.2.001) to be removed;
f) Planting of a minimum of 28 trees within the application site and the Palace Road Housing Estate
gardens; and
g) All other planting and landscaping improvements to the Palace Road Housing Estate.
The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In order to ensure high quality soft landscaping in and around the site in the interests of the
ecological value of the site and in the interests of visual amenity (policy Q2, Q9 and Q10 of the London
Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).

6)

Young Tree Management Plan

Page 53
Prior to the occupation of the development, a schedule of landscape maintenance for all new trees for a
minimum period of 5 years shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The schedule shall include details of who will care for the new trees and implement the schedule. The
maintenance of the new trees, shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved schedule,
unless the written consent of the Local Planning Authority is received for any variation.
Reason: In order to ensure high quality soft landscaping in and around the site in the interests of the
ecological value of the site and in the interests of visual amenity (policy Q2, Q9 and Q10 of the London
Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
7)

Secured by Design
The development shall be constructed and operated thereafter to ‘Secured by Design Standards’. A
certificate of accreditation to Secured by Design Standards shall be submitted to the local planning
authority for approval in writing prior to the residential occupation of the development.
The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure that the development maintains and enhances community safety (policy Q3 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).

8)

Cycle Storage
Prior to occupation of the development hereby permitted, details of the provision to be made for cycle
parking shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The cycle parking
shall thereafter be implemented in full in accordance with the approved details before the use hereby
permitted commences and shall thereafter be retained solely for its designated use.
Reason: To ensure adequate cycle parking is available on site and to promote sustainable modes of
transport (policies T1, T3 and Q13 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).

9)

Waste and recycling storage
Prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted, details of waste and recycling storage (Scale
1:20) for the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The waste and recycling storage shall be provided in accordance with the approved details prior to the
commencement of the use hereby permitted, and shall thereafter be retained solely for its designated
use. The waste and recycling storage shall be shown with doors, and it should comply with the Lambeth’s
Refuse & Recycling Storage Design Guide (2013), unless it is demonstrated in the submissions that such
provision is inappropriate for this specific development.
Reason: To ensure suitable provision for the occupiers of the development, to encourage the sustainable
management of waste and to safeguard the visual amenities of the area (policies Q2 and Q12 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Operational Conditions
10) Delivery and Servicing Management Plan
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, a Delivery and Servicing Management Plan
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development hereby
permitted shall be built in accordance with the approved details and shall thereafter be retained solely for
its designated use. The use hereby permitted shall thereafter be operated in accordance with the
approved Delivery and Servicing Management Plan. The submitted details shall include:
a)
b)
c)

The servicing and delivery times;
Vehicular tracking for the largest type of refuse vehicle/HGV servicing the site;
Waste movement plan (to comply with the guide for architects and developers on waste and
recycling storage and collection requirements 2013).

Page 54
d)
e)

Details of how bins will be transported from the refuse store for collection;
Confirmation the bins will be returned to the store after collection; and

Reason: To ensure suitable provision for the occupiers of the development, to encourage the sustainable
management of waste and to safeguard the visual amenities of the area (policies Q2 and Q12 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
11)

Travel Plan Statement
Prior to the occupation of any part of the development hereby permitted, a Travel Plan Statement for the
proposal shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan
shall include (but not be limited to):
a) Measures to reduce the impacts of staff parking on surrounding streets, and should encourage
sustainable transport options.
b) Details of how visitors will be provided with advice specifying the local bus services, frequencies
and destinations, and most direct walking routes to Tulse Hill Station.
The details approved in the Travel Plan Statement shall be fully implemented and maintained for the
duration of the use, unless the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority is obtained to any
variation.
Reason: To ensure that the travel arrangements to the site are appropriate and to limit the effects of the
increase in travel movements (Policy 6.3 of the London Plan (2016) and Policies T1 and T6 of the
Lambeth Local Plan (2015).

12)

Noise from mechanical equipment
Noise from any mechanical equipment or building services plant, as measured in accordance with
BS4142: 2014, shall not exceed the background noise level L90B(A) 15 minutes, when measured outside
the window of the nearest noise sensitive or residential premises.
Reason: To protect the amenities of adjoining occupiers and the surrounding area (Policy Q2 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).

13)

Noise from amplified sound
Noise from any source of amplified sound, speech or music shall not exceed the background noise level
L90B(A) 15 minutes, when measured from outside the building.
Reason: To ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of
adjoining occupiers or of the area generally. (Policy Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
Sustainability conditions

14)

Site Clearance
The site clearance shall be undertaken between September and February, and outside the normal bird
nesting season, as recommended by the submitted Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, prepared by 3
October 2017.
Reason: To ensure that the clearance work do not impact on the breeding bird season. Policy EN1 of
Lambeth Local Plan 2015.

15)

Drainage Strategy
No development shall take place until details of the final drainage strategy, including details of the
implementation, the maintenance and the management of the sustainable drainage scheme have been
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented and
thereafter managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details. Those details shall include:

Page 55
a) Calculation of surface water runoff using 40% for climate change;
b) Infiltration tests to prove that infiltration cannot be employed on-site, to support the use of
underground storage;
c) The final surface water drainage design to scale, showing all connections; and
d) A management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which shall include the
arrangements for adoption by any public body or statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements
to secure the operation of the sustainable drainage scheme throughout its lifetime.
Reason: To manage the water environment of the development and mitigate the impact on flood risk,
water quality, habitat and amenity value (policies EN5 and EN6 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local
Plan (2015)).
16)

Energy and Sustainability Statement
Prior to the commencement of above ground works, an amended Energy and Sustainability Statement
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Energy and
Sustainability Statement should be updated using the guidance contained within the Mayor’s Sustainable
Design and Construction SPG, and it should cover (but not limited to) the following points:
a) How materials that have a low embodied energy, can be sustainably sourced, are durable and
non-toxic will be prioritized;
b) What provisions are being uses to connect to potential future planned energy networks; and
c) How the use of existing resources will be maximized and waste generated from demolition and
construction minimized.
The development shall be provided in accordance with the approved details prior to the commencement
of the use hereby permitted.
Reason: The above ground works shall not commence prior to this condition being discharged, in order
to demonstrate that sustainability is integral to the design of the development as required by Policy EN4
of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015).

17)

BREEAM certificate (prior commencement of above ground works)
Prior to the commencement of above ground works, a BREEAM Design Stage certificate and summary
score sheet shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted
documents shall demonstrate that the scheme can achieve ‘Excellent’ score across the entire
development.
Reason: The above ground works shall not commence prior to this condition being discharged, in order
to demonstrate that sustainability is integral to the design of the development as required by Policy EN4
of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015).

18)

BREEAM certificate (prior to first occupation)
Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, a BREEAM Post Construction certificate
and summary score sheet shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The submitted documents shall demonstrate that an ‘Excellent’ score has been achieved across the entire
development.
Reason: To ensure that sustainability has been integral to the design of the development as required by
Policy EN4 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015).

19)

Details of solar panels
Prior to the first occupation of any part of the development hereby permitted, a scheme showing the siting,
size, number and design of the solar thermal panels and photovoltaic (PV) arrays, including cross
sections of the roof of the building with the equipment in situ, shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be completed in strict accordance with
the approved details.

Page 56

Reason: To ensure that sustainability is integral to the design of the development as required by Policy
EN4 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015).
Construction works Conditions
20)

Method of Construction
No demolition or development shall commence until full details of the proposed construction methodology,
in the form of a Method of Construction Statement, have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The Method of Construction Statement shall include details regarding:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

The notification of neighbours with regard to specific works;
Advance notification of road closures;
Details regarding parking, deliveries, and storage;
Details regarding dust mitigation;
Details of measures to prevent the deposit of mud and debris on the public highway; and
Any other measures to mitigate the impact of construction upon the amenity of the area and the
function and safety of the highway network.

No demolition or development shall commence until provision has been made to accommodate all site
operatives', visitors' and construction vehicles loading, off-loading, parking and turning within the site or
otherwise during the construction period in accordance with the approved details. The demolition and
development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the details and measures approved in the
Method of Construction Statement.
Reason: Development must not commence before this condition is discharged to avoid hazard and
obstruction being caused to users of the public highway and to safeguard residential amenity from the
start of the construction process (policies 7.14 of the London Plan (2015); and policies T6 and T8 of the
Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
21)

Non-road mobile machinery (NRMM)
No non-road mobile machinery (NRMM) shall be used on the site unless it is compliant with the NRMM
Low Emission Zone requirements (or any superseding requirements) and until it has been registered for
use on the site on the NRMM register (or any superseding register).
Reason: To ensure that air quality is not adversely affected by the development in line with London Plan
policy 7.14 and the Mayor’s SPG: The Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition.

11

INFORMATIVES

1)

This decision letter does not convey an approval or consent which may be required under any enactment,
by-law, order or regulation, other than Section 57 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2)

Your attention is drawn to the provisions of the Building Regulations, and related legislation which must
be complied with to the satisfaction of the Council's Building Control Officer.

3)

Your attention is drawn to the provisions of The Party Wall Act 1996 in relation to the rights of adjoining
owners regarding party walls etc. These rights are a matter for civil enforcement and you may wish to
consult a surveyor or architect.

4)

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the requirements of the Control of Pollution Act 1974
concerning construction site noise and in this respect you are advised to contact the Council's
Environmental Health Division.

Page 57
5)

You are advised of the necessity to consult the Principal Highways Engineer of the Highways team on
drw@lambeth.gov.uk in order to obtain necessary prior approval for undertaking any works within the
Public Highway including Scaffold, Temporary/Permanent Crossovers, Oversailing/Undersailing of the
Highway, Drainage/Sewer Connections and Repairs on the Highways, Hoarding, Excavations,
Temporary Full/Part Road Closures, Craneage Licenses etc. You are advised to contact the Highways
team at the earliest possible opportunity.

6)

For information on the NRMM Low Emission Zone requirements and to register NRMM, please visit
http://nrmm.london/

7)

You are advised that the landscaping schedules (Condition 5) should endeavour to include measures to
promote biodiversity including use of native species typical of locality and ground conditions or naturalised
areas. They should also endeavour to include measures to encourage protected species to occupy the
site, such as installation of bat and bird boxes on buildings, loggeries or wood piles on roofs, and creation
of naturalised areas within communal areas.

This page is intentionally left blank

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/10/2017 AND 31/10/2017
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

16/05627/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

79 Braxted Park
London
SW16 3AU

Conversion of the property to provide 4 selfcontained flats, involving the erection of a single
storey ground floor rear extension and side infill
extension and the installation of 3 rear rooflights
to the main rear roofslope, together with new
entrance access via Strathbrook Road and the
provision of cycle/refuse stores, communal
garden and associated landscaping works. (Resubmission).

Committee
Decision

Refuse Permission

03.10.2017

Appeal
Allowed

The Inspector considered the main issue of this appeal to be the effect of the proposal on No 79 Braxted Park and the Streatham Lodge Conservation Area, having special regard to the
desirability of preserving its character or appearance.

The Inspector noted that in comparison to the scale of the overall dwelling, the alterations to the rear of the property as a whole, would be relatively small in scale and subservient. Whilst
the areas of glazing forming part of these additions, including the proposed roof lights, would be significant relative to the additions, they would also remain subservient to the main
dwelling. In addition, the Inspector noted that although the change to the rear building line would be apparent when viewed from Strathbrook Road, this would not appear out of
character in the context of No 79's already different appearance to the mid-row dwellings of Braxted Park.

17/01242/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

271 Lyham Road
London
SW2 5NS

Roof extension over the existing rear return

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

12.10.2017

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issue of this appeal to be the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the host building and area.
The Inspector considered that the proposed location of the rear roof extension, extending as it would over approximately half of the length of the rear return between the main rear roof
and chimney stack, would result in an irregular form of development. In addition, due to its scale and proportions would not appear subordinate in design to the roof of the existing
building, partly as a consequence of its width. He considered proposed extension would sit uncomfortably and would appear as an uncharacteristic and incongruous form of development,
despite the position of the existing chimney acting as a partial screen of the end elevation. The Inspector also noted that the use of a glazed roof is not a characteristic incorporation of

1

Agenda Item 4

The Inspector allowed the appeal stating that the proposal would preserve the character and appearance of No79 and the Streatham Lodge Conservation Area, according with policies Q5,
Q11 and Q12 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.

Page 59

The Inspector considered that the principle of a pedestrian access off Strathbrook Road is not in itself out of character, and that, No. 79 already has a pedestrian access off Strathbrook
Road, albeit not as formal as that proposed. He noted that the proposed boundary wall and gate to Strathbrook Road would have a similar appearance to the existing boundary treatment
to Braxted Park and, as such, would appear appropriate.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/10/2017 AND 31/10/2017
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

Erection of a rear dormer roof extension to
second floor flat

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

12.10.2017

Appeal
Dismissed

materials on this scale or form of development.
The Inspector dismissed the appeal.

17/00961/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

310 South Lambeth
Road
London
SW8 1UQ

The main issue considered was whether the proposal would preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the host building and the South Lambeth Conservation Area.

He concluded that the proposal would cause substantial harm to a designated asset, appearing as an obtrusive and incongruous addition to the rear of the appeal property. Subsequently,
he considered that the proposed development would fail to preserve or enhance the character of the South Lambeth Conservation Area, conflicting with policies of the Local Plan.
The Inspector thusly dismissed the appeal.
17/00822/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

Land Rear Of 23
Becmead Avenue
London

Erection of a 2 storey dwelling house, with front
entrance via Steep Hill and provision of 1 car
parking space, 2 cycle stands and refuse storage.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

19.10.2017

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered that the proposed dwelling would be set significantly forward of the exisitng well-established building line, resulting in an overly prominent presence within the
streetscene, which would contrast adversely with the harmonious setting and character of existing streetscenes. He also considered the inclusion of dormer windows on the front
elevation would be an obtrusive and uncharacteristic design feature. The Inspector noted that the proposal would not accord with policy Q14 - not allowing 70% of the existing open land
to be retained with the original host building, being two-storey and sitting immediately adjacent to existing boundaries with No. 2 Steep Hill and No. 21 Becmead Avenue. He concludes
that the proposal would not accord with policies Q5, Q7, Q9, Q10 and Q14 of the Local Plan, having an adverse effect on the character and appearance of the area, including on protected
trees.
The Inspector considered that any external amenity space to the front of the property would not be considered private and the remaining space to the side of the proposed dwelling is
insufficient and therefore conflicting with policy H5 of the Local Plan. The Inspector noted that the position of the proposed dwelling would relate poorly with No. 2 Steep Hill and Nos. 21
and 19 Becmead Avenue - resulting in an adverse impact on the outlook, daylight and sunlight and, direct overlooking to neighbouring occupiers. He therefore concludes that the proposal

2

Page 60

The Inspector acknowledged that the principle of a dormer window was the most appropriate way to provide additional accommodation in conservation areas. However, he considered in
this case, that the proposal did not comply with the guidance of the SPD which informs Policy Q11 of the adopted Local Plan.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/10/2017 AND 31/10/2017
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

Refuse Permission

16.10.2017

Appeal
Dismissed

would not safeguard the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers contrary to policies H5, Q2 and Q14 of the Local Plan.
The Inspector subsequently dismissed the appeal.

17/00454/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

69 Acre Lane
London
SW2 5TN

Temporary change of use from dwellinghouse to
short term let

Delegated
Decision

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be the effect of the proposed change of use:
a) on the provision of housing in the Borough
b) on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers with regard to noise and disturbance
c) on the provision of refuse and recycling and cycle facilities at the site

The Inspector noted that the frequency of activities resulting from the 5 year permission was unclear from the evidence provided. Visitor turnover of up to four guests and the activities
associated with such intensification of the premises (comings and goings, luggage, deliveries, management visits, servicing visits and everyday activities) would lead to increased noise and
disturbance and a consequent adverse impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers.
The Inspector noted that the provision of refuse, recycling and cycle parking facilities was required as the proposal would constitute development. The likely high turnover of visitors
would raise the demand for such facilities. The lack of information provided in the submission meant that the Inspector was unable to determine whether appropriate provision of site
facilities could be made.
The Inspector went on to dismiss the appeal as the proposal was in clear contravention of the Local Plan (Policies Q2, Q12, Q13 and H3)

17/00330/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

3 Glenfield Road
London
SW12 0HQ

Replacement of existing windows with white
uPVC framed windows (Flat 3A)

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

10.10.2017

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of the appeal to be whether the proposed development would preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the surrounding Hyde Farm

3

Page 61

The Inspector noted that the aim of permitting the temporary use for short term lets during the owner's absence would be incompatible with the aims and objectives of the Local Plan.
Policy H3 states that permanent housing should not be used for temporary accommodation, even if the change of use itself is temporary. The development would not fall into any of the
exceptions provided in the policy. It would be considered a material change of use.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/10/2017 AND 31/10/2017
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

Conservation Area and its effect on the character and appearance of the appeal property.
On this issue, the Inspector noted that the appeal property comprises an Edwardian era development which still retains its coherent overall composition, and its style contributes to the
significance of the Hyde Farm Conservation Area. The Inspector addressed the fact that the appellant submitted conflicting plans and it was difficult to allude to whether the proposed
windows would properly reflect a style appropriate to the original sliding sashes. The benefits of insulation from using uPVC would not outweigh the harm arising from the development.
Overall, the Inspector concluded that the proposal would not preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the Hyde Farm Conservation Area and would have an adverse effect
on the character and appearance of the host building.
The Inspector went on to dismiss the appeal.

17/01642/ADV

Refusal Advert

467 Brixton Road
London
SW9 8HH

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

06.10.2017

Appeal
Allowed

The Inspector considered the main issue of this appeal to be the effect of the proposed advertisement on the amenity of the area, having regard to local heritage assets.
The Inspector noted that the Council takes no issue with proposed shroud image but object to the inset advertising area on the most prominent part of the building façade. They agree
with the appellant that without the advertisement area, there would be little financial incentive for the shroud which would cover the proposed scaffolding and related sheeting and/or
netting for the duration of the works.
During the site visit the Inspector noted a nearby building that was undergoing building works and clad in plastic sheeting and commented that the obscuration of the appeal building by
scaffolding and related sheeting would significantly harm the amenity of the area. Therefore, they believe the shroud would give visual benefit as it would hide the proposed works and
would offset the visual impact of the advertisement display, especially as it would be for a temporary period. The Inspector notes other advertisements mounted above street level in the
locality and therefore does not consider that the advert would appear out of place.
With regard to the swan neck lighting above the advertisement panel, the Inspector considered that with a discreet number of fittings relative to the width of the proposed
advertisement, they would not impart a cluttered appearance especially due to the broader scale of the host building. The fittings would unlikely deteriorate and the bird droppings would
not be an issue due to the contemporary consent sought.
The Inspector subsequently allowed the appeal subject to conditions.

4

Page 62

Display of 1 externally illuminated decorative
scaffold shroud screen advertisement comprising
a 1:1 image of the building facade with an inset
advertising area measuring 14m wide x 5m high,
for a temporary period from 4th April 2017 to 4th
September 2018.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/10/2017 AND 31/10/2017
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

17/00960/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

40 Park Hall Road
London
SE21 8DW

Loft conversion involving the erection of a rear
dormer roof extension and a rear roof terrace
and installation of a front rooflight.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

10.10.2017

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be 1) the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the host building, streetscene, and area, and
2) whether the proposals would safeguard the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers, having regard to privacy.
The Inspector noted that 'neither the incorporation of a roof extension on the rear return nor the provision of an inset rear dormer facilitating the provision of the terrace, would accord
with the design principles set out within the SPD'. With regards the proposed front rooflights, the Inspector noted that 'whilst I accept the Council's criticism of the size and positioning of
the rooflights in relation to the windows below, I am not persuaded that these specific factors would detract from the appearance of the host dwelling or area to a sufficient degree so as
to be visually harmful.'

The Inspector went on to dismiss the appeal.
17/00936/ADV

Refusal Advert

84 - 100 Streatham
High Road
London
SW16 1BS

Display of 4 non-illuminated hanging banners to
front elevation and 1 backlit advertisement
board to side elevation.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

03.10.2017

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be 1) the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and 2) the effect of the proposal on
the impact of amenity on the character of the Conservation Area.
The Inspector noted that, by virtue of the cumulative visual effect of the projecting banner signs, and the size, location, and means of illumination of the additional advertisement on the
side elevation, the proposed signage would not reflect the positive qualities and appearance of other advertisements within the conservation area, and would not neither preserve nor
enhance the character and appearance of the conservation area.
The Inspector also considered that due to the number signs proposed on site - this has the potential to be distracting both amenity and safety grounds, and ultimately counter-productive
in delivering a message or the purpose of the advertisements. Furthermore, the proposed advertisements would result in amenity concerns and would also not therefore accord with the
Framework, which seeks to prevent the negative impact of poor advertisements. Therefore, the proposed development is contrary to Policy Q17 and Q22 of the Local Plan (2015) and
Advertisement and Signage Guidance (2016). As such, the appeal was dismissed.

5

Page 63

The Inspector also considered that the proposed terrace would be set in place of the rear main roof slope of the dwelling, with the effect that the three-storey rear return would screen
the potential for direct overlooking towards the habitable room windows of neighbouring properties on Clive Road, and was satisfied that the presence of a proposed 1.7 metre high
screen wall as indicated on the submitted plans would provide sufficient mitigation to prevent any unacceptable opportunities for overlooking. The Inspector also observed on site that,
the rear first and second floor bedroom windows within the rear return already provide the opportunity for direct overlooking of neighbouring gardens at a far closer proximity.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/10/2017 AND 31/10/2017
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

17/01505/ADV

Refusal Advert

79 - 81 Clapham
Common South Side
London
SW4 9DQ

Display of hotel name board signs hanging in
traditional metal frame fixed onto a single post.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

16.10.2017

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be the effect of the advertisement on the character and appearance of the area and its visual amenity with particular regard to
the Clapham Conservation Area.
It was noted, in the first instance that, the site already has advertising in the form of a large blue sign at the railings, wording on blue coloured window canopies and a painted advert on
the frontage. The appellant referred to the existing signage being removed if this one was permitted at appeal, but this appears to refer to the sign board at the railings only.

The Inspector considered that the advertisement would clearly be contrary to the aims of protecting local character and heritage assets as set out in Policies Q17 and Q22 of the Local Plan
(2015) and the guidance set out within the SPD Advertisement and Signage Guidance.
The Inspector dismissed the planning appeal.

17/01405/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

121 Clapham Manor
Street
London
SW4 6DR

Refurbishment of existing property, including
demolition of existing rear extension and
outbuilding, together with extension at lower
and upper ground floor levels plus replacement
of windows and new front door, along with other
associated alterations.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

30.10.2017

Appeal
Allowed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the host property and whether it would preserve or enhance
the character and appearance of the Rectory Grove Conservation Area.
The Inspector noted that the proposed extension would have a projection of around 14.3m beyond the original rear elevation, tripling the original ground floor footprint. The stepped
form of the extension would ensure its height appears modest. The reducing height of the extension as it extends towards the rear and where the eaves height would be similar to the
height of the existing fence, and would ensure that it would not appear excessively long. The extension, being partially sunken into the garden, would ensure it appeared subordinate.

6

Page 64

Due to being situated on top of a pole, the size and 4.5m overall height of the advertisement would be prominent along the frontage of this part of Clapham Common Southside, and the
Inspector did not find any similar advertisements along this stretch and side of the road. The Inspector concluded that a further large different sign at the appeal site will add to that
clutter and detract from the otherwise residential area where it is located, and the signage would detrimentally affect the visual amenity of the area.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/10/2017 AND 31/10/2017
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

The inspector considered that the proposal would have an unusual roof form. From site observations, extensions along the rear were visible, including one of the adjoining properties
which comprised of a pitched roof but, with the rear extension having differing heights and roof pitches. The main roof on the appeal dwelling also has an asymmetrical form. From the
rear garden, the roof of the extension would reflect the angles of the roof on the main building, and the Inspector considered that this would not appear incongruous and the green roof
design would assimilate well with the garden.
The Inspector went on to allow the appeal.

Allowed

Dismissed

Mixed

Month total

3

8

0

Financial year to date

38

69

1

Page 65

7

This page is intentionally left blank

PLANNING ENFORCEMENT APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/10/2017 AND 31/10/2017
Council ref.

Address

Breach of planning control

Notice type

Decision date

Appeal decision

No Enforcement appeals were decided this month

Allowed

Dismissed

Mixed

Month total

0

0

0

Financial year to date

1

2

0

Page 67

1

This page is intentionally left blank

